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NOT FOR RELEASE, DISTRIBUTION, PUBLICATION, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN OR INTO OR FROM THE
UNITED STATES, AUSTRALIA, JAPAN, THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION WHERE TO DO SO MIGHT
CONSTITUTE A VIOLATION OF THE RELEVANT LAWS OR REGULATIONS OF SUCH JURISDICTION.

ARROW ANNOUNCES 2023 AUDITED YEAR END AND Q4 2023 RESULTS, FILING OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, MD&A
AND RESERVES REPORT

Significant growth across key metrics including 79% increase in total revenue, increase in production of 61% and healthy cash
position           

CALGARY, April 29, 2024 - Arrow Explora�on Corp. (A IM: AXL; TSXV: AXL) ("Arrow" or the "Company") the high-
growth operator with a por+olio of assets across key Colombian hydrocarbon basins, announces the filing of
its Annual Audited Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") for the quarter
and year ended December 31, 2023 and the filing of its 2023 year-end reserves report, which are available on
SEDAR (www.sedar.com) and will also shortly be available on Arrow's website at www.arrowexploration.ca.

 

Full Year 2023 Highlights:

·    Significant 79% growth in total oil and gas revenue to $44.7 million, net of royal�es (FY 2022: $25.0
million).

·    Net loss of $1.1 million inclusive of an impairment loss of $11.8 million (FY: 2022: net income of $0.3
million)

·    Adjusted EBITDA more than doubled to $27 million (FY 2022: $12.5 million), with Q4 2023 EBITDA of
$7.1 million compared to $4.5 million in Q4 2022.

·    Cash position of $12 million at the end of 2023.

·    Annual average corporate produc�on up 61% to 2,167 boe/d (FY 2022: 1,345 boe/d) with Q4 2023
average corporate production of 2,335 boe/d compared to Q4 2022 1,736 boe/d.

·    Realized corporate opera�ng netbacks of $45.17/boe, and $40.49/boe in Q4 2023, due to increased
production and better prices of crude oil.

·    Funds flow from opera�ons of $19.9 million (FY 2022: $9.5 million) with Q4 2023 funds flow from
operations of $3.8 million (FY 2022: $2.0 million)

·    Proved and probable reserves at year-end 2023 increased 54% to 11.8 MMboe; represen�ng a reserve
replacement ratio of 621%.

·    Successfully drilled an explora�on well at Carrizales Norte (CN), which added significant reserves to
the Company, followed by drilling of two more CN wells

·    Drilled six Rio Cravo Este (RCE) wells resul�ng in material produc�on and reserves increases.
Successfully completed two workovers in the RCE-1 and RCS-1 wells at Rio Cravo.

·    Drilled two Oso Pardo (OP) wells in the Santa Isabel block, resulting in additional production.

·    All operations delivered safely, with no accidents or environmental incidents.
 
Post Period End Highlights:

·    So far in 2024, the Company has drilled six development wells on the Carrizales Norte field in the Tapir
Block, which are all currently producing at restricted rates. Ramping produc�on up slowly prevents
early water breakthrough in each well.

·    Currently mobilizing the drilling rig to the Carrizales Norte B (CNB) pad to start drilling the first
horizontal well.

 
Outlook

·    Arrow has a fully funded 2024 work program totaling $45 million targe�ng up to 16 wells mainly in the
Tapir block.

·    Most development wells will be drilled in Carrizales Norte, including the Company's first horizontal
wells and recently identified prospects in Baquiano and Mateguafa Attic.

http://www.sedar.com
http://www.arrowexploration.ca


wells and recently identified prospects in Baquiano and Mateguafa Attic.
 

Marshall Abbott, CEO of Arrow Exploration Corp., commented:
 

"2023 was a great year for the Company on all fronts.  We saw substan�al growth in produc�on, revenue and
EBITDA and our healthy balance sheet supports the aggressive capital program planned for 2024. 
 
So far in 2024, Arrow has completed drilling of CN-4 through CN-8 and all wells are currently on produc�on. 
CN-8 was a long reach well targe�ng the C7 forma�on.  The well was successful in an area that before was not
considered prospec�ve and supports the stra�graphic play thesis as well as addi�onal reserves addi�ons. 
Arrow is considering a 2024 mid-year reserve report to give investors an indica�on of the reserves addi�ons
discovered by the CN-5 and CN-8 wells.    
 
Arrow is now moving the drilling rig to the Carrizales Norte B (CNB) pad where the first horizontal well is
expected to be spud in May and on produc�on in June.   Arrow then plans to drill up to three or four
addi�onal horizontal wells at the CNB pad and one water disposal well.  Addi�onally, Arrow plans to convert
one of the Carrizales Norte wells into a water disposal well.
 
Following work at the CNB pad, Arrow plans to move the drilling rig to the Baquiano pad to drill the first
explora�on well at Baquiano.  With success, two addi�onal Baquiano wells are planned to be drilled. Arrow
expects the first horizontal well at Carrizales Norte to have a significant impact on the Company's produc�on
and the Baquiano explora�on well to have further significant impact to both the Company's produc�on and
reserves.  The Arrow team con�nues to strive towards opera�onal excellence and increasing shareholder
value."  
 
CN-7

The CN-7 well was spud on March 19th, 2024, and reached target depth on March 26th, 2024.  The well was
drilled to a total measured depth of 9730 feet (8710 feet true ver�cal depth) and encountered mul�ple
hydrocarbon-bearing intervals. Arrow has completed the CN-7 well in the Carbonera forma�on which has
approximately 19 feet of net oil pay. The pay zone is a clean sandstone exhibi�ng consistent 28% porosity and
high resis�vi�es. An electric submersible pump (ESP) has been inserted in the well aMer perfora�ng. The
well has been put on produc�on and is currently producing at 320 BOPD gross (160 BOPD net).   The tes�ng
results indicate the well is capable of higher rates and the ul�mate flow rate will be determined in the first
few weeks of production. 
 

 
 
CN-8
The CN-8 well was spud on April 5th, 2024, and reached target depth on April 12th, 2024.  The well was drilled
to a total measured depth of 10320 feet (8664 feet true ver�cal depth) and encountered mul�ple
hydrocarbon-bearing intervals. Arrow has completed the CN-8 well in the Carbonera forma�on which has
approximately 14 feet of net oil pay. The pay zone is a clean sandstone exhibi�ng consistent 25% porosity and
high resistivities. An electric submersible pump (ESP) has been inserted in the well after perforating.
The well has been put on produc�on, is in the process of cleaning up and stabilizing, and is currently
producing at 330 BOPD gross (165 BOPD net).   The tes�ng results indicate the well is capable of higher rates
and the ultimate flow rate will be determined in the first few weeks of production. 
 
Initial production results are not necessarily indicative of long-term performance or ultimate recovery.  

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS
 
 
(in United States dollars, except as otherwise
noted)

Three months
ended December

31, 2023

Year ended
December
31, 2023

Thre e  months
e nde d

De ce mbe r 31,
2022

Ye a r e nde d
De ce mbe r

31, 2022

Tota l  na tura l  ga s  a nd crude  oi l  re ve nue s ,
ne t of roya l ti e s 13,406,513 44,670,006 8,931,562 24,973,464

  

Funds  fl ow from ope ra ti ons  (1) 3,781,033 19,990,584 1,960,289 9,493,208

Funds  fl ow from ope ra ti ons  (1) pe r s ha re  -   

    Ba s i c($) 0.01 0.08 0.01 0.04

    Di l ute d ($) 0.01 0.07 0.01 0.03

Ne t (l os s ) i ncome  (10,492,053)  (1,106,613) 2,968,117 346,524
Ne t (l os s ) i ncome  pe r s ha re  -   
   Ba s i c ($)  (0.04)  (0.00) 0.01 0.00



   Ba s i c ($)  (0.04)  (0.00) 0.01 0.00
   Di l ute d ($)  (0.04)  (0.00) 0.01 0.00

Adjus te d EBITDA (1)               
7,132,422 27,157,169 4,456,757 12,493,099

We i ghte d a ve ra ge  s ha re s  outs ta ndi ng:   
   Ba s i c 278,144,305 242,537,228 217,784,100 215,468,129
   Di l ute d 291,404,032 289,903,094 288,239,348 279,288,480
Common s ha re s  e nd of pe ri od 285,864,348 285,864,348 218,401,931 218,401,931

Ca pi ta l  e xpe ndi ture s 10,471,447 27,084,959 2,106,463 7,668,988

Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts 12,135,376 12,135,376 13,060,968 13,060,968

Curre nt a s s e ts             
21,629,198 21,629,198 17,504,225 17,504,225

Curre nt l i a bi l i ti e s             
12,960,084 12,960,084 18,820,890 18,820,890

Adjus te d worki ng ca pi ta l (1)               
8,669,114 8,669,114 8,223,758 8,223,758

Re s tri cte d ca s h a nd de pos i ts (2)                  
854,834 854,834 765,586 765,586

Tota l  a s s e ts 62,275,023 62,275,023 53,190,248 53,190,248
 

Operating  
 

Natural gas and crude oil production, before
royalties  
Na tura l  ga s  (Mcf/d) 1,819 2,150 3,270 2,958  
Na tura l  ga s  l i qui ds  (bbl /d) 4 4 6 5  
Crude  oi l  (bbl /d) 2,027 1,805 1,185 847  
Total (boe/d) 2,335 2,167 1,736 1,345  

    
Operating netbacks ($/boe) (1)    
Na tura l  ga s  ($/Mcf) ($0.21) ($0.13) $0.57 $1.01  
Crude  oi l  ($/bbl ) $45.91 $53.97 $57.88 $65.06  
Total ($/boe) $40.49 $45.17 $41.95 $42.40  

(1)Non-IFRS measures - see "Non-IFRS Measures" section within this MD&A

(2)Long term restricted cash not included in working capital

 

2023 YEAR-END RESERVES

Arrow has also filed on SEDAR, the Company's Statement of Reserves Data and Other Oil and Gas Informa�on,
Report on Reserves Data by Independent Qualified Reserves Evaluator, and Report of Management and
Directors on Oil and Gas Disclosure for the year ended December 31, 2023, as required by sec�on 2.1 of
Na�onal Instrument 51-101 - Standards of Disclosure for Oil and Gas Ac.vi.es (together, the "Reserve
Report").
 
To recap, the Company's Year-End 2023 Company Working Interest Gross Reserves Highlights include:

·    5,292 Mboe of Proved Reserves ("1P Reserves");
·    11,847 Mboe of Proved plus Probable Reserves ("2P Reserves");

·    17,805 Mboe of Proved plus Probable plus Possible Reserves ("3P Reserves")1;
·    1P Reserves es�mated net present value before income taxes of US$135 million calculated at a 10%

discount rate;
·    2P Reserves es�mated net present value before income taxes of US$280 million calculated at a 10%

discount rate; and
·    3P Reserves es�mated net present value before income taxes of US$445 million calculated at a 10%

discount rate.
 
Arrow refers readers to the Company's press release of March 28, 2024 for addi�onal details, as well as to the
Reserve Report filed on SEDAR.
 
DISCUSSION OF OPERATING RESULTS

The Company increased its production from new wells at both Rio Cravo Este and Carrizales Norte fields in the
Tapir block. These have allowed the Company to con�nue to improve its opera�ng results and EBITDA.  There
has also been a decrease in the Company's natural gas production in Canada due to natural declines.
 
Average Production by Property

Average Production Boe/d YTD 2023 Q4 2023 Q3 2023 Q2 2023 Q1 2023 Q4 2022

Oso Pardo 110 80 93 130 138 115



Oso Pardo 110 80 93 130 138 115
Ombu (Capel la) 20 - - - 80 238
Rio Cravo Este (Tapir) 1,342 1,326 1,443 1,592 1,004 832
Carrizales  Norte (Tapir) 332 621 642 57 - -
Total Colombia 1,805 2,027 2,178 1,779 1,222 1,185
Fir, Alberta 78 80 81 77 74 79
Pepper, Alberta 284 228 259 313 340 472

TOTAL (Boe/d) 2,167 2,335 2,518 2,169 1,635 1,736

The Company's average produc�on for the year and the three months ended December 31, 2023 was 2,167
boe/d and 2,335 boe/d, respec�vely, which consisted of crude oil produc�on in Colombia of 1,805 bbl/d and
2,027 bbl/d, natural gas produc�on of 2,150 Mcf/d and 1,819 Mcf/d, respec�vely, and minor amounts of
natural gas liquids from the Company's Canadian proper�es. The Company's total 2023 produc�on was 67%
higher than its total 2022 production.
 
DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

During Q4 2023 the Company continued to real ize strong oi l  and gas  prices , as  summarized below.

Three months ended
December 31

2023 2022 Change

Benchmark Prices  
AECO (C$/Mcf) $2.34 $4.42 (47%)
Brent ($/bbl) $77.32 $88.59 (13%)
West Texas  Intermediate ($/bbl) $78.35 $82.65 (5%)
Realized Prices  
Natural  gas , net of transportation ($/Mcf) $1.68 $3.66 (54%)
Natural  gas  l iquids  ($/bbl) $68.30 $68.28 0%
Crude oi l , net of transportation ($/bbl) $69.61 $72.29 (4%)

Corporate average, net of transport ($/boe)(1) $62.72 $57.53 9%
   (1)Non-IFRS measure

As at December 31, 2023, the Company reviewed its cash-genera�ng units ("CGU") for property and
equipment and determined that there were indicators of impairment loss in its Canada CGU and its Capella
block in Colombia and recognized a loss of $11,799,740.
 
OPERATING NETBACKS

The Company also continued to real ize pos itive operating netbacks , as  summarized below.

 Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

 2023 2022 2023 2022

Natural Gas ($/Mcf)  
Revenue, net of transportation expense $1.68 $3.66 $1.94 $3.94

Royalties (0.05) (0.50) (0.02) (0.60)

Operating expenses (1.84) (2.59) (2.05) (2.34)

Natural Gas operating netback(1) ($0.21) $0.57 ($0.13) $1.01

Crude oil ($/bbl)  
Revenue, net of transportation expense $69.61 $72.29 $72.05 $83.10

Royalties (7.97) (6.33) (8.69) (8.81)

Operating expenses (15.73) (8.08) (9.39) (9.24)

Crude Oil operating netback(1) $45.91 $57.88 $53.97 $65.06

Corporate ($/boe)
Revenue, net of transportation expense $62.72 $57.53 $62.31 $60.20

Royalties (7.07) (5.34) (7.30) (6.77)

Operating expenses (15.16) (10.24) (9.84) (11.04)

Corporate Operating netback(1) $40.49 $41.95 $45.17 $42.40
 (1)Non-IFRS measure

The opera�ng netbacks of the Company maintained healthy levels during 2023 due to increased produc�on
from its Colombian assets, notwithstanding lower crude oil prices, which was offset by decreases in natural
gas prices and higher operating expenses for natural gas.

During 2023, the Company invested $27 million of capital expenditures, primarily in connec�on with the
drilling of 9 wells in the Tapir Block (6 RCE and 3 CN), two Oso Pardo wells, and acquisi�on of 100 km2 of 3D
seismic in the Tapir block to highlight exis�ng leads and prospects for drilling. This accelera�on in opera�onal
tempo is expected to continue in 2024, funded by cash on hand and cashflow.
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About Arrow Exploration Corp.

Arrow Explora�on Corp. (opera�ng in Colombia via  a  branch of i ts  100% owned subs idiary Carrao Energy S.A.) i s  a  publ icly
traded company with a  por+ol io of premier Colombian oi l  assets  that are underexploited, under-explored and offer high
poten�al  growth. The Company's  bus iness  plan is  to expand oi l  produc�on from some of Colombia's  most ac�ve bas ins ,
including the Llanos, Middle Magdalena Val ley (M M V) and P utumayo Bas in. The asset base is  predominantly operated with
high working interests , and the Brent-l inked l ight oi l  pricing exposure combines  with low royal�es  to yield aRrac�ve
poten�al  opera�ng margins . Arrow's  50% interest in the Tapir Block is  con�ngent on the ass ignment by Ecopetrol  SA of
such interest to Arrow. Arrow's  seasoned team is  led by a  hands-on execu�ve team supported by an experienced board.
Arrow is  l i s ted on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange and on TSX Venture Exchange under the symbol  "AXL".

Forward-looking Statements

This  news release contains  certain statements  or disclosures  rela�ng to Arrow that are based on the expecta�ons of i ts
management as  wel l  as  assump�ons made by and informa�on currently avai lable to Arrow which may cons�tute forward-
looking statements  or informa�on ("forward-looking statements") under appl icable securi�es  laws. Al l  such statements
and disclosures , other than those of historical  fact, which address  ac�vi�es, events , outcomes, results  or developments
that Arrow an�cipates  or expects  may, could or wi l l  occur in the future (in whole or in part) should be cons idered forward-
looking statements . I n some cases, forward-looking statements  can be iden�fied by the use of the words  "con�nue",
"expect", "opportunity", "plan", "poten�al" and "wi l l" and s imi lar express ions. The forward-looking statements  contained
in this  news release reflect several  materia l  factors  and expecta�ons and assump�ons of Arrow, including without
l imitation, Arrow's  evalua�on of the impacts  of COVI D-19, the poten�al  of Arrow's  Colombian and/or Canadian assets  (or
any of them individual ly), the prices  of oi l  and/or natural  gas , and Arrow's  bus iness  plan to expand oi l  and gas  produc�on
and achieve aRrac�ve poten�al  opera�ng margins . Arrow bel ieves  the expecta�ons and assump�ons reflected in the
forward-looking statements  are reasonable at this  time, but no assurance can be given that these factors , expectations, and
assumptions  wi l l  prove to be correct.

The forward-looking statements  included in this  news release are not guarantees  of future performance and should not be
unduly rel ied upon. Such forward-looking statements  involve known and unknown risks , uncertain�es  and other factors
that may cause actual  results  or events  to differ materia l ly from those an�cipated in such forward-looking statements . The
forward-looking statements  contained in this  news release are made as  of the date hereof and the Company undertakes  no
obl iga�ons to update publ icly or revise any forward-looking statements , whether as  a  result of new informa�on, future
events  or otherwise, unless  so required by appl icable securi ties  laws.

Neither TSX Venture Exchange nor its Regulation Services Provider (as that term is defined in policies of the TSX
Venture Exchange) accepts responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of this release.
 
 

Glossary

Bbl/d or bop/d: Barrels  per day
$/Bbl : Dol lars  per barrel
Mcf/d: Thousand cubic feet of gas  per day
Mmcf/d: Mi l l ion cubic feet of gas  per day
$/Mcf: Dol lars  per thousand cubic feet of gas
Mboe: Thousands of barrels  of oi l  equivalent
Boe/d: Barrels  of oi l  equivalent per day
$/Boe: Dol lars  per barrel  of oi l  equivalent
 
BO E's  may be mis leading par�cularly i f used in isola�on. A BO E convers ion ra�o of 6 Mcf: 1 bbl is  based on an energy
equivalency convers ion method primari ly appl icable at the burner �p and does  not represent a  value equivalency at the
wel lhead.

Non-IFRS Measures
The Company uses  non-I F RS measures  to evaluate i ts  performance which are measures  not defined in I F RS. Working
capital , funds  flow from opera�ons, real ized prices , opera�ng netback, adjusted EB I TDA, and net debt as  presented do not
have any standardized meaning prescribed by I F RS and therefore may not be comparable with the calcula�on of s imi lar
measures  for other en��es. The Company cons iders  these measures  as  key measures  to demonstrate i ts  abi l i ty to generate
the cash flow necessary to fund future growth through capital  investment, and to repay i ts  debt, as  the case may be. These
measures  should not be cons idered as  an al terna�ve to, or more meaningful  than net income (loss) or cash provided by



measures  should not be cons idered as  an al terna�ve to, or more meaningful  than net income (loss) or cash provided by
opera�ng ac�vi�es  or net loss  and comprehensive loss  as  determined in accordance with I F RS as  an indicator of the
Company's  performance. The Company's  determina�on of these measures  may not be comparable to that reported by other
companies .

This Announcement contains inside information for the purposes of the UK version of the market abuse
regulation (EU No. 596/2014) as it forms part of United Kingdom domestic law by virtue of the European Union
(Withdrawal) Act 2018 ("UK MAR").
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

 
To the Shareholders of Arrow Exploration Corp.
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arrow Exploration Corp. and its subsidiaries (the Company), which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the consolidated statement
of operations and comprehensive (loss) income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the consolidated
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report.  We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of



our report.  We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. 
Key audit matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming the auditor's opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to this matter.  Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recoverable amount of property and equipment in the Canada cash generating unit ("CGU")

For the year ended December 31, 2023, impairment of
$1,248,400 was recorded with respect to property and
equipment in the Canada CGU.  The Company's
disclosures related to property and equipment and
impairment are included in notes 2, 3, and 8 of the
consolidated financial statements. An assessment is made at
each reporting date as to whether there are any indicators
for impairment. If such indicators exist, impairment charges
are recognized. The recoverable amount of the Canada CGU
was determined utilizing a fair value less costs of disposal
model based on the net present value of future cash flows
based on an independent reserve evaluation in addition to
an internal valuation of undeveloped land.
Auditing the Company's estimated recoverable amounts for
its Canada CGU was complex due to the subjective nature
of the underlying inputs and assumptions and the
significant effect changes in these would have on the
recoverable amount. Additionally, the evaluation of this
estimate required specialized skills and knowledge. The
primary inputs noted in the determination of the
recoverable amount were expected production volumes,
forecasted benchmark prices, forecasted exchange rates,
royalties, operating costs, future development costs,
discount rate and comparable land transaction metrics.

To test the Company's estimated recoverable amount for its
Canada CGU, we performed the following procedures,
among others:

·      Evaluated the Company's independent reserve evaluator's
and internal specialist determining the value of undeveloped
land's competence, capability, and objectivity, as well as
obtained an understanding of the work they performed.

·      Involved our internal valuation specialists to assess the
methodology applied, and the various inputs utilized in
determining the discount rate by referencing current industry,
economic, and comparable company information, as well as
company and cash-flow specific risk premiums.

·      Compared forecasted benchmark commodity pricing and
foreign exchange rates against other third-party price
forecasts.

·      Assessed forecasted production, royalties, operating costs,
and future development costs by comparing them to
historical results.

·      Assessed the completeness and accuracy of comparable land
transaction metrics utilized.

·      Assessed the existence and ownership of undeveloped land
included in the valuation.

·      Evaluated the adequacy of the relevant note
disclosures included in the consolidated financial
statements in relation to this matter.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises:

·      Management's Discussion and Analysis

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, and
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
We obtained Management's Discussion & Analysis prior to the date of this auditor's report. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact in
this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·      Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
·      Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

·      Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

·      Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

·      Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

·      Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Beth Sanford.

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Calgary, Canada                                                                                                                                                                     
April 28, 2024

Arrow Exploration Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
In United States Dollars

 
As at Notes  December 31,

2023
December 31,

2022
ASSETS     
Current assets     
Cash $ 12,135,376 $ 13,060,968
Restricted cash and deposits 4  611,753 210,654
Trade and other receivables 5  3,536,936 2,568,290
Taxes receivable 6  4,655,399 801,177
Deposits and prepaid expenses   197,402 157,459
Inventory   492,332 705,677

  21,629,198 17,504,225
Non-current assets    
Deferred income taxes 14  2,031,383 872,286
Restricted cash and deposits 4  243,081 608,127
Property and equipment 8  38,371,361 34,205,610
Total Assets $ 62,275,023 $ 53,190,248
    
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY    
Current Liabilities    



Current Liabilities    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 9,747,906 $ 5,850,823
Lease obligation 10  103,674 41,434
Promissory note 9  - 1,899,294
Derivative liability 12  - 9,540,423
Income taxes 14  3,108,504 1,488,916
   12,960,084 18,820,890
Non-current liabilities    
Lease obligations 10  216,919 22,317
Other liabilities   345,528 80,484
Deferred income taxes 14  3,269,894 5,066,684
Decommissioning liability 11  3,973,075 3,303,301
Total liabilities   20,765,500 27,293,676
    
Shareholders' equity    
Share capital 13  73,829,795  57,810,735
Contributed surplus   2,161,945 1,570,491
Deficit   (33,945,895) (32,839,282)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (536,322) (645,372)
Total shareholders' equity   41,509,523  25,896,572
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 62,275,023 $ 53,190,248
 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 

On be ha l f of the  Boa rd:

                                                               

  signed "Gage Jull"          Di re ctor                                                          signed "Ian Langley"            Di re ctor

Ga ge  Jul l                                                                                                  Ia n La ngl e y

 

 

 

 

Arrow Exploration Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive (Loss) Income
In United States Dollars

 
 

For the years ended December 31, Notes  2023  2022
    

Revenue     
Oil and natural gas 18  50,596,786  $  28,135,254  

Royalties 18  (5,926,780)  (3,161,790)  
Total oil and natural gas revenue, net of royalties   44,670,006  24,973,464  

     
Expenses      

Operating   7,991,172  5,159,068  
Environmental   113,991  -  
Administrative   9,941,864  6,723,201  
Listing costs   -  171,328  
Share-based compensation expense 13  591,454  582,405  
Financing costs:      

Accretion 11  127,478  199,521  
Interest 9, 10  141,117  460,233  
Other   317,676  330,797  

Foreign exchange (gain) loss   (640,941)  590,034  
Depletion and depreciation 8  12,186,777  5,528,489  
Impairment (reversal) of oil and gas properties,
net

8  11,799,740  (9,020,654)  

(Gain) loss on derivative liability 12  (1,041,992)  5,974,674  
Other expenses (income)   106,751  (163,266)  
    Total expenses, net   41,635,087  16,535,830  
      
Income before income tax   3,034,919  8,437,634  
      
Income tax expense (recovery)      

Current 14  7,097,419  2,428,862  



Current 14  7,097,419  2,428,862  
Deferred 14  (2,955,887)  5,662,248  

   4,141,532  8,091,110  
      
Net (loss) income   (1,106,613)  346,524  

     
Other comprehensive income      

Foreign exchange   109,050  158,364  
    Total other comprehensive income   109,050  158,364  
      
Total comprehensive (loss) income   (997,563)  $      504,888  

     
Net (loss) income per share:      

Basic   $        (0.00)  $             0.00  
Diluted   $        (0.00)  $             0.00  

     
Weighted average shares outstanding      

Basic   242,537,228  215,468,129  
Diluted   289,903,094  279,288,480  

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 

Arrow Exploration Corp.
Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
In United States Dollars

 
   

 
 
 
 

Share Capital

  
 
 
 

Contributed
Surplus

  
 
 

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
loss

  
 
 
 
 

 Deficit

  
 
 
 
 

Total Equity
 

Balance January 1, 2023 $ 57,810,735 $ 1,570,491 $ (645,372) $ (32,839,282) $ 25,896,572

Net loss - - - (1,106,613) (1,106,613)

Other comprehensive income - - 109,050 - 109,050
    Total comprehensive loss - - 109,050 (1,106,613) (997,563)

Issuances of common shares, net 16,019,060 - - - 16,019,060

Share-based compensation - 591,454 - - 591,454

Balance December 31, 2023 $ 73,829,795 $ 2,161,945 $ (536,322) $ (33,945,895) $ 41,509,523

 
 

   
 
 
 
 

Share Capital

  
 
 
 

Contributed
Surplus

  
 
 

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
loss

  
 
 
 
 

 Deficit

  
 
 
 
 

Total Equity
 

Balance January 1, 2022 $ 56,698,237 $ 1,249,418 $ (803,736) $ (33,185,806) $ 23,958,113

Net income - - - 346,524 346,524

Other comprehensive income - - 158,364 - 158,364
    Total comprehensive income - - 158,364 346,524 504,888

Issuances of common shares, net 1,112,498 - - - 1,112,498

Options settled in cash - (6,621) - - (6,621)

Share-based compensation - 327,694 - - 327,694

Balance December 31, 2022 $ 57,810,735 $ 1,570,491 $ (645,372) $ (32,839,282) $ 25,896,572

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 
 

 

Arrow Exploration Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
In United States Dollars
 
For the year ended December 31, Notes 2023 2022

    
 Cash flows provided by operating activities:   
 Net (loss) income  $    (1,106,613)    $   346,524
 Items not involving cash:   
  Deferred taxes 14 (2,955,887) 5,662,248
  Share-based compensation 13 591,454 327,694
  Depletion and depreciation 8 12,186,777 5,528,489

  Impairment loss  (reversal ) of oi l  and gas
properties

8
11,799,740 (9,020,654)

  Interest on leases 10 22,011 9,696
  Interest on promissory note 9 119,106 469,258
  Accretion 11 127,478 199,521
  Unreal ized foreign exchange loss  154,064 79,581
      (Gain) loss  on derivative l iabi l i ty 12 (1,041,992) 5,974,674
      Long-term debt forgiveness  - (7,692)
      Environmental  113,991 -
 Payment of asset decommiss ioning obl igations 11 (19,545) (76,131)
 Changes  in non cash working capital  balances:   
 Restricted cash and deposits  (36,052) (86,228)
 Trade and other receivables  (1,001,992) (1,928,707)
 Taxes  receivable  (3,854,222) (82,129)
 Deposits  and prepaid expenses  (39,943) 164,840
 Inventory  213,345 (458,613)
 Income tax payable  1,619,588 1,488,916
 Accounts  payable and accrued l iabi l i ties  (414,757) 3,445,263
 Cash provided by operating activi ties  16,476,551 12,036,550
   
 Cash flows used in investing activities:   
 Additions  to exploration and evaluation assets 7 (3,212,808) -
 Additions  to property and equipment 8 (23,872,151) (7,668,988)
 Changes  in non-cash working capital  4,500,093 (715,217)
 Cash flows used in investing activi ties  (22,584,866) (8,384,205)
   
 Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities:   
 Issuances  of common shares 13 7,479,802 510,786
 Payment of promissory note 9 (2,018,577) (1,888,750)
 Lease payments 10 (74,211) (39,697)
 Payment of long-term debt  - (23,076)
 Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activi ties  5,387,014 (1,440,737)
   
 Effect of changes in the exchange rate on cash  (204,291) (29,148)
 (Decrease) increase in cash  (925,592) 2,182,460
 Cash, beginning of period  13,060,968 10,878,508
 Cash, end of period  12,135,376 13,060,968
    
 Supplemental information   
 Interest paid  $            415,026 $              285,205

 
Taxes  paid

    $                    
   2,454,658    $                -

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 

 
1.    Corporate Information

 

 

Arrow Explora�on Corp. ("Arrow" or "the Company") i s  a  publ ic junior oi l  and gas  company

engaged in the acquis i�on, explora�on and development of oi l  and gas  proper�es  in Colombia

and in Western Canada. The Company's  shares  trade on the TSX  Venture Exchange and the AI M

Market of the London Stock Exchange plc under the symbol  AX L. The head office of Arrow is  located

at 203, 2303 - 4th Street SW, Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2S 2S7 and the registered office is  located

at 600, 815 8th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2P 3P2.

 

 
 
2.    Basis of Presentation



2.    Basis of Presentation

 

 

Statement of compliance

The Company prepares  i ts  consol idated financial  s tatements  in accordance with I nterna�onal

Financial  Repor�ng Standards  ("I F RS") as  i ssued by the I nterna�onal  Accoun�ng Standards  Board

(I AS B). The consol idated financial  s tatements  have been approved and authorized for i ssuance by

the Board of Directors  ("the Board") on Apri l  28, 2024.

Basis of measurement

These consol idated financial  s tatements  have been prepared on a historical  cost bas is  except for

certain financial  instruments  that have been measured at fa i r value and specifical ly noted within

the notes  to these consol idated financial  s tatements .

 

Functional and presentation currency

These consol idated financial  s tatements  are presented in United States  Dol lars . The Canadian

Dol lar i s  the func�onal  currency of the Company and i ts  whol ly owned subs idiary Arrow Holdings

Ltd. (AH L). The func�onal  currency of the Company's  subs idiaries  opera�ng in Colombia and

Panama is  the United States  Dol lar.

 

Monetary assets  and l iabi l i ties  denominated in foreign currencies  are trans lated to the functional

currency at the period-end exchange rate. Non-monetary assets , l iabi l i�es , revenues and expenses

are trans lated at exchange rates  at the transac�on date. Exchange gains  or losses  are included in

the determina�on of net income or loss  in the consol idated statements  of opera�ons and

comprehensive (loss) income.

 

Use of estimates and judgments

The prepara�on of consol idated financial  s tatements  requires  management to make es�mates

and use judgment regarding the reported amounts  of assets  and l iabi l i�es  and disclosures  of

con�ngent assets  and l iabi l i�es  as  at the date of the financial  s tatements  and the reported

amounts  of revenues and expenses  during the periods  presented. By their nature, es�mates  are

subject to measurement uncertainty and changes  in such es�mates  in future periods  could

require a  materia l  change in the financial  s tatements . Accordingly, actual  results  may differ from

the es�mated amounts  as  future confirming events  occur. S ignificant es�mates  and judgments

made by management in the preparation of these financial  s tatements  are as  fol lows:

 

Exploration and evaluation assets

Explora�on and evalua�on assets  require judgment as  to whether future economic benefits  exist,

including the existence of proven or probable reserves  and the abi l i ty to finance explora�on and

evalua�on projects , where technical  feas ibi l i ty and commercial  viabi l i ty has  not yet been

determined.

 

Depletion and depreciation

The amounts  recorded for deple�on and deprecia�on are based on es�mates  of proved and

probable reserves.  Assump�ons that are val id at the �me of reserve es�ma�on may change

materia l ly as  new information becomes avai lable. 

Changes  in forward price es�mates, produc�on and future development costs , recovery rates  or

decommiss ioning costs  may change the economic status  of reserves  and may ul�mately result in

reserves  used for measurement purposes  being removed from s imi lar calcula�ons in future

reporting periods.

 

Cash Generating Unit ("CGU")

I F RS requires  that the Company's  oi l  and natural  gas  proper�es  be aggregated into CGUs, based

on their abi l i ty to generate largely independent cash flows, which are used to assess  the

proper�es  for impairment. The determina�on of the Company's  CGUs is  subject to management's

judgment.

 

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment and exploration and evaluation assets

I ndicators  of impairment are assessed by management us ing judgment, cons idering future plans,

market condi�ons and commodity prices . I n assess ing the recoverabi l i ty, each CGU's  carrying

value is  compared to i ts  recoverable amount, defined as  the greater of i ts  fa i r value less  costs  of



value is  compared to i ts  recoverable amount, defined as  the greater of i ts  fa i r value less  costs  of

disposal  and value in use. Recoverable amounts  calculated for impairment tes�ng are based on

es�mates  of future commodity prices , expected volumes, quan�ty of reserves  and discount rates

as  wel l  as  future development costs , royal�es, and opera�ng costs . I n addi�on, the Company may

iden�fy value associated with undeveloped land with recoverable amounts  calculated based on

precedent land transac�ons as  wel l  as  the appl ica�on of a  premium or discount to these

precedent transac�ons and assump�ons regarding the abi l i ty to obtain extens ions  on such land.

These calcula�ons require the use of es�mates  and assump�ons, which by their nature, are

subject to measurement uncertainty. I n addi�on, judgment is  exercised by management as  to

whether there have been indicators  of impairment or of impairment reversal . I ndicators  of

impairment or impairment reversal  may include, but are not l imited to a  changes  in: market value

of assets , asset performance, es�mate of future prices , royal�es  and costs , es�mated quan�ty of

reserves  and appropriate discount rates .

 

Decommissioning obligations

Measurement of the Company's  decommiss ioning l iabi l i ty involves  es�mates  as  to the cost and

�ming of incurrence of future decommiss ioning programs. I t a lso involves  assessment of

appropriate discount rates , rates  of infla�on appl icable to future costs  and the rate used to

measure the accretion charge for each reporting period.  Measurement of the l iabi l i ty a lso reflects

current engineering methodologies  as  wel l  as  current environmental  legis lation and standards.

 

Income taxes

The Company recognises  deferred tax assets  to the extent that i t i s  probable that the deduc�ble

temporary differences  wi l l  reverse in the foreseeable future and that sufficient taxable income

wil l  be generated in the future to recover such deferred tax assets . Assess ing the recoverabi l i ty of

deferred tax assets  requires  the Company to make s ignificant es�mates  related to expecta�ons of

future taxable income. Es�mates  of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from

opera�ons and the appl ica�on of exis�ng tax laws.  To the extent that future cash flows and

taxable income differ s ignificantly from es�mates, the abi l i ty of the Company to real ise the net

deferred tax assets  recorded at the repor�ng date could be impacted. I n addi�on, future changes

in tax laws could l imit the abi l i ty of the Company to obtain tax deductions  in future periods.

 

 

 

3.      Material Accounting Policies

 

 

Interests in joint arrangements

Certain of the Company's  explora�on and produc�on ac�vi�es  are regarded as  joint opera�ons

and are conducted under joint opera�ng agreements , whereby two or more par�es  jointly control

the assets .  These consol idated financial  s tatements  reflect only the Company's  share of these

jointly control led opera�ons, and the Company's  propor�onate share of the relevant revenue and

costs .

 

 

 

Financial instruments

The Company cons iders  whether a  contract contains  an embedded derivative when i t fi rst becomes

a party to i t.  Embedded deriva�ves  are separated from the host contract which is  not measured at

fair value through profit or loss  when the analys is  shows that the economic characteris�cs  and

risks  of embedded derivatives  are not closely related to those of the host contract.

F inancial  assets  and financial  l iabi l i�es  are recognized in the Company's  statement of financial

pos i�on when the Company becomes party to the contractual  provis ions  of the instrument. 

F inancial  assets  are derecognized when the contractual  rights  to the cash flows from the financial

asset expire or when the contractual  rights  to those assets  are transferred.  F inancial  l iabi l i�es

are derecognized when the obl igation speci fied in the contract i s  discharged, cancel led or expired.

 

Financial assets

The Company's  financial  assets  are comprised of cash, restricted cash, trade and other

receivables  and deposits .  Cash and restricted cash are class ified as  financial  assets  at fa i r value



receivables  and deposits .  Cash and restricted cash are class ified as  financial  assets  at fa i r value

through profit or loss .  Trade and other receivables , and deposits  are class ified and measured at

amor�zed cost us ing the effec�ve interest, less  any impairment losses . The ini�al  class ifica�on of

a financial  asset depends upon the Company's  bus iness  model  for managing i ts  financial  assets

and the contractual  terms of the cash flows. There are three measurement categories  into which

the Company class i fied i ts  financial  assets :

 

-   Amor�zed Cost: I ncludes  assets  that are held within a  bus iness  model  whose objec�ve is  to

hold assets  to col lect contractual  cash flows and i ts  contractual  terms give rise on specified

dates  to cash flows that represent solely payments  of principal  and interest;

 

-   Fair Value Through P rofit or Loss  ("F VTP L"): I ncludes  assets  that do not meet the cri teria  for

amor�zed cost or F VO C I  and are measured at fa i r value through profit or loss . This  includes  a l l

derivative financial  instruments .

 

At ini�al  recogni�on, the Company measures  a  financial  asset at i ts  fa i r value and, in the case of

a financial  asset not at F VTP L, including transac�on costs  that are directly aRributable to the

acquis i�on of the financial  asset. Transac�on costs  of financial  assets  carried at F VTP L are

recorded as  an expense. F inancial  assets  are reclass ified subsequent to their ini�al  recogni�on

only i f the bus iness  model  for managing those financial  assets  changes. The affected financial

assets  wi l l  be reclass ified on the first day of the first repor�ng period fol lowing the change in the

business  model . A financial  asset i s  derecognized when the rights  to receive cash flows from the

asset have expired or have been transferred and the Company has  transferred substan�al ly a l l  the

risks  and rewards  of ownership.

 

Financial liabilities

Financial  l iabi l i�es  are class ified as  financial  l iabi l i�es  at fa i r value through profit or loss  or

amor�zed cost. The Company's  financial  l iabi l i�es  are comprised of accounts  payable and

accrued l iabi l i�es , promissory note and long-term debt. These are class ified and measured at

amortized cost us ing the effective interest method.

 

Derivative liability

The non-compensa�on based warrants  en�tle the holder to acquire a  fixed number of common

shares  for a  fixed Bri�sh Pence price per share. An obl iga�on to issue shares  for a  price that i s

not fixed in the Company's  func�onal  currency of Canadian Dol lars , and that does  not qual i fy as  a

share-based payment, must be class ified as  a  deriva�ve l iabi l i ty and measured at fa i r value with

changes  recognized in the statements  of opera�ons and comprehensive (loss) income as  they

arise. The Company has  recorded these changes  as  deriva�ve (gain) loss  in the statement of

opera�ons and comprehensive (loss) income. The transac�on costs  associated with exercis ing of

the warrants  are expensed when incurred.

 

Exploration and evaluation assets

P re-l icense costs  are recognized in the statement of opera�ons and comprehensive (loss) income

as incurred. Explora�on and evalua�on costs  include the costs  of acquiring undeveloped land

and dri l l ing costs  are ini�al ly capital ized un�l  the dri l l ing of the wel l  i s  complete and the results

have been evaluated. The costs  are accumulated in cost centers  by wel l , field or explora�on area

pending determina�on of technical  feas ibi l i ty and commercial  viabi l i ty. The technical  feas ibi l i ty

and commercial  viabi l i ty of extrac�ng a mineral  resource is  cons idered to be determinable when

proved or probable reserves  are determined to exist.

 

I f proved and/or probable reserves  are found, the dri l l ing costs  and associated undeveloped land

are transferred to property and equipment aMer performing an impairment assessment. W hen

explora�on and evalua�on assets  are determined not to be technical ly feas ible and commercial ly

viable, or the Company decides  not to con�nue with i ts  ac�vity, the unrecoverable costs  are

charged to the consol idated statements  of opera�ons and comprehensive (loss) income  as  pre-

l icense expense.

 

Property and equipment

I tems of property and equipment, which include oi l  and gas  development and produc�on assets ,

are measured at cost less  accumulated deple�on, deprecia�on and accumulated impairment



losses , net of reversals . The cost of development and produc�on assets  includes: transfers  from

explora�on and evalua�on assets , which general ly include the cost to dri l l  the wel l  and the cost

of the associated land upon determina�on of technical  feas ibi l i ty and commercial  viabi l i ty; the

cost to complete and �e-in the wel ls ; faci l i ty costs ; the cost of recognizing provis ions  for future

restora�on and decommiss ioning; geological  and geophys ical  costs ; and directly aRributable

overheads. Development and produc�on assets  are grouped into CGU's  for impairment tes�ng.

Gains  and losses  on disposal  of an i tem of property and equipment, including oi l  and natural  gas

interests , are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal  with the carrying amount of

property and equipment and are recognized in the statement of opera�ons and comprehensive

(loss) income.

 

Subsequent costs:

Costs  incurred subsequent to the determina�on of technical  feas ibi l i ty and commercial  viabi l i ty

and the costs  of replacing parts  of property and equipment are recognized as  oi l  and gas  assets

only when they increase the future economic benefits  embodied in the specific asset to which they

relate. Al l  other expenditures  are expensed as  incurred. Such capital ized oi l  and natural  gas

assets  general ly represent costs  incurred in developing proved and/or probable reserves  and

bringing in or enhancing produc�on from such reserves, and are accumulated on a field or

geotechnical  area bas is . The carrying amount of any replaced or sold component is  derecognized.

The costs  of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized in opera�ng

expenses  as  incurred.

 

Depletion and depreciation:

The net carrying value of development and produc�on assets  i s  depleted us ing the unit of

produc�on method by reference to the ra�o of produc�on in the period to the related proved plus

probable reserves, taking into account es�mated future development costs  necessary to bring

those reserves  into produc�on and the es�mated salvage value of the assets  at the end of their

useful  l ives . Future development costs  are es�mated taking into account the level  of development

required to produce the reserves. P roved plus  probable reserves  are es�mated annual ly by

independent qual ified reserve evaluators  and represent the es�mated quan��es of crude oi l ,

natural  gas  and natural  gas  l iquids  which geological , geophys ical  and engineering data

demonstrate with a  specified degree of certainty to be recoverable in future years  from known

reservoirs  and which are cons idered commercial ly producible. Deprecia�on methods, useful  l ives

and res idual  values  are reviewed at each reporting date.

 

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes  loss  a l lowances  for Expected Credit Losses  ("ECLs") on i ts  financial  assets

measured at amor�zed cost. Due to the nature of i ts  financial  assets , the Company measures  loss

al lowances  at an amount equal  to expected l i fe�me EC Ls. Li fe�me EC Ls  are the an�cipated EC Ls

that result from al l  poss ible default events  over the expected l i fe of a  financial  asset. EC Ls  are a

probabi l i ty-weighted es�mate of credit losses . Credit losses  are measured as  the present value of

al l  cash shor+al ls . EC Ls  are discounted at the effec�ve interest rate of the related financial  asset.

The Company does  not have any financial  assets  that contain a  financing component.

 

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts  of the Company's  non-financial  assets  are reviewed at each repor�ng date

to determine whether there is  any indica�on of impairment. I f any such indica�on exists , then the

asset's  recoverable amount is  es�mated. Explora�on and evalua�on assets  are a lso assessed for

impairment prior to being transferred to property and equipment.

 

For the purpose of impairment tes�ng, assets  are grouped together into the smal lest group of

assets  that generates  cash inflows from con�nuing use that are largely independent of the cash

inflows of other assets  or groups of assets  (CGU). The recoverable amount of an asset or a  CGU is

the greater of i ts  value in use and i ts  fa i r value less  costs  of disposal . Fair value less  cost to

dispose is  determined as  the amount that would be obtained from the sale of a  CGU in an arm's

length transac�on between knowledgeable and wi l l ing par�es. The fa ir value less  cost to dispose

of oi l  and gas  assets  i s  general ly determined as  the net present value of the es�mated future cash

flows expected to arise from the con�nued use of the CGU, including any expansion prospects , and

its  eventual  disposal , us ing assump�ons that an independent market par�cipant may take into



i ts  eventual  disposal , us ing assump�ons that an independent market par�cipant may take into

account. These cash flows are discounted by an appropriate discount rate which would be appl ied

by such a market par�cipant to arrive at a  net present value of the CGU. I n addi�on, the Company

considers  whether any value may be separately attributed to undeveloped land.

 

Value in use is  determined as  the net present value of the es�mated future cash flows expected to

arise from the con�nued use of the asset in i ts  present form and i ts  eventual  disposal . Value in

use is  determined by applying assump�ons specific to the Company's  con�nued use and can only

take into account future development costs . Es�mates  of future cash flows used in the evalua�on

of impairment of assets  are made us ing management's  forecasts  of commodity prices  and

expected produc�on volumes. The laRer takes  into account assessments  of field reservoir

performance and includes  expecta�ons about proved and unproved volumes, which are risk-

weighted uti l i zing geological , production, recovery and economic projections.

 

An impairment loss  i s  recognized i f the carrying amount of a  CGU exceeds i ts  es�mated

recoverable amount. I mpairment losses  are recognized in the statement of opera�ons and

comprehens ive (loss) income. I mpairment losses  recognized in respect of CGU's  are a l located to

reduce the carrying amounts  of assets  in the CGU on a pro rata bas is . I mpairment losses

recognized in prior years  are assessed at each repor�ng date to determine i f facts  and

circumstances  indicate that the loss  has  decreased or no longer exists . An impairment loss  i s

reversed i f there has  been a change in the es�mates  used to determine the recoverable amount. An

impairment loss  i s  reversed only to the extent that the asset's  carrying amount does  not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deple�on and deprecia�on, i f no

impairment loss  had been recognized.

 

Provisions

A provis ion is  recognized i f, as  a  result of a  past event, the Company has  a  present legal  or

construc�ve obl iga�on that can be es�mated rel iably, and i t i s  probable that an ou+low of

economic benefits  wi l l  be required to seRle the obl iga�on. P rovis ions  are determined by

discoun�ng the expected future cash flows at a  pre-tax risk-free rate that reflects  current market

assessments  of the �me value of money and the risks  specific to the l iabi l i ty. P rovis ions  are not

recognized for future operating losses .

 

Decommissioning obligations

The Company's  ac�vi�es  give rise to dismantl ing, decommiss ioning and s i te disturbance

remedia�on ac�vi�es. P rovis ion is  made for the es�mated cost of abandonment and s i te

restora�on and capital ized in the relevant asset category. Decommiss ioning obl iga�ons are

measured at the present value of management's  best es�mate of the expenditure required to seRle

the present obl iga�on as  at the repor�ng date. Subsequent to the ini�al  measurement, the

obl iga�on is  adjusted at the end of each period to reflect the passage of �me and changes  in the

es�mated future cash flows underlying the obl iga�on. The increase in the provis ion due to the

passage of �me is  recognized as  accre�on (within finance expense) whereas  increases/decreases

due to changes  in the es�mated future cash flows or changes  in the discount rate are capital ized.

Actual  costs  incurred upon seRlement of the decommiss ioning obl iga�ons are charged against the

provis ion.

Revenue

The Company's  revenues are primari ly derived from the produc�on of petroleum and natural  gas . 

Revenue from contracts  with customers  is  recognized when the Company sa�sfies  a  performance

obl iga�on by phys ical ly transferring the product and control  to a  customer.  The Company

sa�sfies  i ts  performance obl iga�ons at the point of del ivery of the product and not over a  period

of �me.  Revenue is  measured based on the cons idera�on specified in contracts  with customers.

Revenue is  recorded net of any royal�es  when the amount of revenue can be rel iably measured

and the costs  incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured rel iably.

 

Income tax

I ncome tax expense is  comprised of current and deferred tax. I ncome tax expense is  recognized in

the statement of opera�ons and comprehensive (loss) income except to the extent that i t relates  to

items recognized directly in equity, in which case i t i s  recognized in equity. Current tax is  the

expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, us ing tax rates  enacted or substan�vely

enacted at the repor�ng date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous  years .



Deferred tax is  recognized on the temporary differences  between the carrying amounts  of assets

and l iabi l i�es  for financial  repor�ng purposes  and the amounts  used for taxa�on purposes.

Deferred tax is  not recognized on the ini�al  recogni�on of assets  or l iabi l i�es  in a  transac�on

that is  not a  bus iness  combina�on. I n addi�on, deferred tax is  not recognized for taxable

temporary di fferences  aris ing on the ini tia l  recognition of goodwi l l .

 

Deferred tax is  measured at the tax rates  that are expected to be appl ied to temporary differences

when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the

reporting date. Deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  are offset i f there is  a  legal ly enforceable right to

offset, and they relate to income taxes  levied by the same tax authori ty on the same taxable en�ty,

or on different tax en��es, but they intend to seRle current tax l iabi l i�es  and assets  on a net bas is

or their tax assets  and l iabi l i�es  wi l l  be real ized s imultaneously. A deferred tax asset i s

recognized to the extent that i t i s  probable that future taxable profits  wi l l  be avai lable against

which the temporary difference can be u�l ized. Deferred tax assets  are reviewed at each repor�ng

date and are reduced to the extent that i t i s  no longer probable that the related tax benefit wi l l  be

real ized.

 

The Company's  income tax provis ions  and income tax assets  and l iabi l i�es  are based on

interpreta�ons of appl icable tax laws, including income tax trea�es  between various  countries  in

which the Company operates , as  wel l  as  underlying rules  and regula�ons with respect to transfer

pricing. These interpreta�ons involve judgments  and es�mates  and may be chal lenged through

government taxa�on audits  that the Company is  regularly subject to. New informa�on may

become avai lable that causes  the Company to change i ts  judgment regarding. The Company's

income of appl icable the adequacy of exis�ng income tax assets  and l iabi l i�es , such changes  wi l l

impact net earnings  in the period that such a determination is  made.

 

Adopted Accounting Standards

The Company has  adopted the fol lowing amendments  to accoun�ng standards, i ssued by the I AS B,

that were effec�ve for annual  periods  beginning on or aMer January 1, 2023, and did not have a

materia l  impact on the Company's  consol idated financial  s tatements .

 

i) Amendments to IAS 8 Changes in Estimates vs Changes in Accounting Policies: In February 2021,

the I AS B issued amendments  to I AS 8 Changes  in Es�mates  vs  Changes  in accoun�ng Pol icies , to

help distinguish changes  in accounting estimates  from changes  in accounting pol icies .

 

ii) Amendments to IA S 12 Income Taxes: I n May 2021, the I AS B issued amendments  to I AS 12

I ncome Taxes, which require en��es to recognize deferred tax on transac�on that, on ini�al

recognition, give rise to equal  amounts  of taxable and deductible temporary di fferences.

 

 

 

 

 

Future Accounting Standards

The Company plans  to adopt the fol lowing amendments  to accoun�ng standards, i ssued by the

I AS B, that are effec�ve for annual  periods  beginning on or aMer January 1, 2024. The

pronouncements  wi l l  be adopted on their respec�ve effec�ve dates  and their impact to the

financial  s tatements  is  currently under assessment.

 

Amendments to IA S 1 PresentaIon of F inancial Statements: I n January 2020, the I AS B issued

amendments  to I AS 1 P resenta�on of F inancial  Statements , to clari fy i ts  requirements  for the

presenta�on of l iabi l i�es  as  current or non-current in the statements  of financial  pos i�on. I n

O ctober 2022, the I AS B issued amendments  to I AS 1, which speci fy the class ifica�on and

disclosure of a  l iabi l i ty with covenants . These wi l l  be effec�ve on January 1, 2024 and i ts  impact

is  not cons idered materia l  to the Company's  consol idated financial  s tatements .

 

 

4.    Restricted Cash and deposits

 



 

 December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

  

Colombia (i) $ 312,530 $ 248,462
Canada (ii)  542,304 570,319

Sub-total  854,834 818,781
  Long-term portion  (243,081) (608,127)
  Current portion of restricted cash and deposits $ 611,753 $ 210,654

 

(i)            This balance is comprised of a deposit held as collateral to guarantee abandonment expenditures related to

the Tapir and Santa Isabel blocks.

( i i )            Pursuant to Alberta government regula.ons, the Company was required to keep a $337,031 (CAD

$445,749; 2022: $424,398) deposit with respect to the Company's liability ra.ng management ("LMR"). The

deposit is held by a Canadian chartered bank with interest paid to the Company on a monthly basis based on

the bank's deposit rate. The remaining $205,273 (2022: $256,986) pertain to commercial deposits with

customers, lease and other deposits held in Canada.

 

 

5.    Trade and other receivables

 

 

 December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

  

Trade receivables , net of advances $ 2,238,918 $ 847,432
Other accounts  receivable  1,298,018 1,720,858

$ 3,536,936 $ 2,568,290

 

As  at December 31, 2023, other accounts  receivable include a $682,197 (December 31, 2022 - ni l )

receivable from on demand loans  with execu�ves  and directors  (see Note 17). As  at December 31,

2022, other accounts  receivable includes  a  $1,070,825 receivable from i ts  partner in the Tapir

block corresponding to reimbursable capital  expenditures .

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.    Taxes receivable

 

 

 December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

  

Value-added tax (VAT) credits  recoverable $ 1,703,260 $ -
Income tax withholdings  and advances, net  2,952,139 801,177

$ 4,655,399 $ 801,177

 

The VAT recoverable balance in 2023 pertains  to non-compensated value-added tax credits

originated in Colombia as  opera�onal  and capital  expenditures  are incurred. The Company is

enti tled to compensate or cla im for the reimbursement of these VAT credits .

 

 

7.    Exploration and Evaluation

 

 

 December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

  

Balance, beginning of the period $ - $ 6,964,506
Additions, net  3,212,808 -
Reclass ifica�on to P roperty and Equipment (Note

8)
 (3,212,808) (6,964,506)

Balance, end of the period $ - $ -



- -

 

During 2023, the Company incurred in geological  and geophys ical  costs  in i ts  Carrizales  Norte

prospect located in i ts  Tapir block, and determined the technical  feas ibi l i ty and commercial

viabi l i ty of these assets , transferring $3,212,808 to i ts  property and equipment.  During 2022, the

Company determined the technical  feas ibi l i ty and commercial  viabi l i ty of i ts  Tapir assets  related

to the Rio Cravo Sur-1 discovery and transferred $6,964,506 to i ts  property and equipment. An

impairment test on these assets  was  prepared and no losses  were iden�fied as  a  result of such

tests .

 

 

8.    Property and Equipment
 
 

 
Cost

Oil and Gas
Properties

Right of Use and
Other Assets

 
Total

Balance, December 31, 2021 $ 32,160,917 $     183,485 $     32,344,402
Additions 7,663,062 50,671 7,713,733
Transfers  from explora�on and evalua�on

assets
6,964,506 - 6,964,506

Decommiss ioning adjustment 756,541 - 756,541
Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 47,545,026 $     234,156 $     47,779,182

Additions 23,907,357 310,061 24,217,418
Dispos itions (111,151) - (111,151)
Transfers  from exploration and evaluation

assets
3,212,808 - 3,212,808

Decommiss ioning adjustment 738,825 - 738,825
Balance, December 31, 2023 $ 75,292,865 $     544,217 $     75,837,082

 

 

 

 

 

Accumulated depletion and depreciation and
impairment

    
Balance, December 31, 2021 $

16,692,145    
$   114,965 $     16,807,110  

Depletion and depreciation 5,482,218 46,271 5,528,489  
Reversal  of impairment losses  of oi l  and gas

properties
 

(9,020,654)
 
-

 
(9,020,654)  

Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 13,153,709 $   161,236  $     13,314,945  
Depletion and depreciation 12,120,871 65,906 12,186,777  
Impairment loss  of oi l  and gas  properties 11,799,740 - 11,799,740  

Balance, December 31, 2023 $ 37,074,320 $   227,142 $     37,301,461  
 
Foreign exchange  
Balance December 31, 2021 $       318,617      $   (3,457)     $         315,160

Effects  of movements  in foreign
       exchange rates

 
(568,525)

 
(5,262)

 
(573,787)

Balance December 31, 2022 $      (249,908)          $   (8,719)     $         (258,627)
Effects  of movements  in foreign
       exchange rates

 
88,671

 
5,697

 
94,368

Balance December 31, 2023 $      (161,237)          $   (3,022)     $         (164,259)

 

Net Book Value
Balance December 31, 2022 $     34,141,409 $       64,201 $    34,205,610
Balance December 31, 2023 $     38,057,308 $     314,053 $    37,371,361
 

Canada

As at December 31, 2023, the Company determined there were indicators  of impairment in i ts

Canada CGU, mainly due to decreases  in forward gas  prices  and revis ion of reserves, and

prepared es�mates  of i ts  fa i r value less  costs  of disposal  of i ts  Canada CGU. I t was  determined

that carrying value of i ts  Canada CGU exceeded i ts  recoverable amount and, therefore, an

impairment loss  of $1,248,400 was included in the consol idated statements  of opera�ons and

comprehensive (loss) income for the year ended December 31, 2023. The fol lowing table outl ines

forecast benchmark prices  and exchange rates  used in the Company's  impairment test as  at

December 31, 2023:    
 Exchange

rate
AECO Spot

Gas
Year $US / $Cdn C$/MMBtu
2024 0.75 2.08
2025 0.75 3.30
2026 0.75 4.27



2027 0.75 4.34
2028
The re a fte r (i nfl a ti on
%)

0.75 4.30
2.0%/yr

 

The recoverable amount was  es�mated at their fa i r value less  costs  of disposal , based on the net

present value of the future cash flows from oi l  and gas  reserves  as  es�mated by the Company's

independent reserve evaluator at December 31, 2023 and an internal  valua�on of undeveloped

land. The fa ir value less  costs  of disposal  used to determine the recoverable amounts  are

class ified as  Level  3 fa i r value measurements  as  certain key assump�ons are not based on

observable market data but rather, the Company's  best es�mate. The Company used a 18.3%

(2022: 15%) pre-tax discount rate, which took into account risks  specific to the Canada CGU. The

key assump�ons in the internal  valua�on of undeveloped land were the determina�on of the

transac�ons cons idered precedent, the discount appl ied to the Company's  lands  and the

probabi l i ty of obtaining extens ions  on related lands. The Company u�l ized an average value per

acre of $89.63 in the impairment test as  at December 31, 2023.

 

 

At December 31, 2023, a  one percent increase in the discount rate would have resulted in a

$102,320 change in the impairment expense, a  five percent decrease in the value/acre ass igned

would have resulted in a  $61,100 change in the impairment expense and a five percent decrease in

the forecasted cash flows from reserves  would have resulted in a  $61,200 change in the

impairment expense.

 

At December 31, 2022, the Company determined there were indicators  of impairment in i ts  Canada

CGU, mainly due to revis ion of reserves, and prepared es�mates  of fa i r value less  costs  of

disposal  of i ts  Canada CGU. I t was  determined that carrying value of i ts  Canada CGU exceeded i ts

recoverable amount and, therefore, an impairment loss  of $1,388,961 was included in the

consol idated statements  of opera�ons and comprehensive (loss) income for the year ended

December 31, 2022.

 

Colombia

During 2023, the Agencia Nacional  de Hidrocarburos  ("ANH") approved the suspension of the

obl iga�ons and opera�ons of the O M BU contract due to force majeure ci rcumstances  generated by

the blockades  and socia l  unrest around the Capel la  field. The suspension was for an ini�al  term

of three months  and has  been extended un�l  August 2024. At December 31, 2023, the Company

determined there were indicators  of impairment in the Capel la  CGU based on updates  from the

operator once access  to the field was  restored in late 2023 caus ing uncertainty in �ming and

resources  required to resume opera�ons, as  wel l  as  the extent of which opera�ons may be able to

be resumed. The Company has  recorded an impairment loss  of $10,551,340 corresponding to the

ful l  carrying value of the Capel la  CGU as  at December 31, 2023.  

 

As  at December 31, 2022, the Company determined that there were indicators  of impairment

reversal  previous ly recognized in i ts  Capel la  block in Colombia, mostly driven by the recovery in

energy commodity prices . The Company prepared es�mates  of fa i r value less  costs  of disposal  of

i ts  Capel la  and determined that recoverable amount of the Capel la  field exceeded i ts  carrying

value and, therefore, recognized an impairment loss  reversal  of $10,409,615. The recoverable

amounts  of property and equipment and impairment losses  (reversals ) recorded during 2023 and

2022 are summarized as  fol lows:

 
 2023  2022
 

CGU
Recoverable

Amount
Impairment

Loss
 Recoverable

Amount
Impairment

Loss  (Reversal )
Canada 2,108,166 1,248,400 4,092,254 1,388,961
Capel la - 10,551,340 33,876,730 (10,409,615)

11,799,740 (9,020,654)
  
 
9.      Promissory Note

 

 

The promissory note was issued to Canacol  Energy Ltd. ("Canacol"), a  related party to the

Company, as  par�al  cons idera�on in the acquis i�on of Carrao Energy S.A. from Canacol . The

promissory note bore interest at 15% per annum, and, on O ctober 18, 2021, Arrow and Canacol



promissory note bore interest at 15% per annum, and, on O ctober 18, 2021, Arrow and Canacol

entered into a  Seventh Amended and Restated P romissory Note agreement. During December 2022,

the Company made a payment of $1,888,750 to Canacol  equivalent to 50% of the outstanding

balance of the promissory note, and on June 30, 2023, the Company paid the remaining balance of

$2,018,577, including interest.
 

 
 
10.    Lease Obligations

 

 

A reconci l iation of the discounted lease obl igation is  set forth below:

 

 

 

  2023 2022
Obl igation, beginning of the year  $         63,751 $         54,692
Additions  302,930 -
Changes  in existing lease  - 44,701
Lease payments  (74,211) (39,697)
Interest  22,011 9,696
Effects  of movements  in foreign exchange rates  6,112 (5,641)
Obl igation, end of the year  320,593 $         63,751
Current portion  (103,674)          (41,434)
Long-term portion  216,919 $         22,317

 

As at December 31, 2023, the Company has  the fol lowing future lease obl igations:

 
Less  than one year  $        104,345
2 - 5 years  326,944
Total  lease payments  431,289
Amounts  representing interest over the term  (110,696)
Present value of the net obl igation  $          320,593

 

 
11.    Decommissioning Liability

 

 

The fol lowing table presents  the reconci l ia�on of the beginning and ending aggregate carrying

amount of the obl igation associated with the decommiss ioning of oi l  and gas  properties :

 

 December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

Obl igation, beginning of the year $      3,303,301 $      2,470,239
Additions 1,000,889 557,845
Change in estimated cash flows (262,066) 198,696
Payments  or settlements (19,545) (76,131)
Dispos itions (191,081) -
Accretion expense 127,478 199,521
Effects  of movements  in foreign exchange rates 14,099 (46,869)
 
Obl igation, end of the year 3,973,075

 
$      3,303,301

 

The obl iga�on was calculated us ing a  risk-free discount rate range of 1.25% to 4.50% in Canada

(2022: 2.50% to 3.75%) and between 4.00% and 4.29% in Colombia (2022: 3.55% and 4.13%) with

an infla�on rate of 2.5% and 2.6%, respec�vely (2021: 3.0% and 3.5%). The majori ty of costs  are

expected to occur between 2024 and 2038. The undiscounted amount of cash flows, required over

the es�mated reserve l i fe of the underlying assets , to seRle the obl iga�on, adjusted for infla�on,

is  estimated at $5,686,938 (2022: $4,480,074).

 

 
12.    Derivative liability

 

 

Derivative l iabi l i ty includes  warrants  issued and outstanding as  fol lows:

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
December 31,

2023
December 31,

2022

Warrants Number Amounts Number Amounts
Balance beginning of the period 67,837,418 $       9,540,423  72,474,706 $  4,692,303
   Exercised (67,462,418) (8,539,257) (4,637,288) (598,509)
   Expired (375,000) (50,589)
   Fair value adjustment - (1,041,992) - 5,974,674
   Foreign exchange - 91,415 - (528,045)
Balance end of the period - $                      - 67,837,418 $       9,540,423

 

Each warrant was  exercisable at £0.09 per new common share for 24 months  from the issuance

date and are measured at fa i r value quarterly us ing the Black-Scholes  op�ons pricing model . The

fair value of warrants  at December 31, 2022 was estimated us ing the fol lowing assumptions:

 

December 31,
2022

Number outstanding re-valued
warrants 67,837,418
Fair value of warrants outstanding £0.1157
Risk free interest rate 3.41%
Expected life 0.82 years
Expected volatility 147%

 

There are no warrants  outstanding nor exercisable at December 31, 2023.

 
 
13.  Share Capital

 

 

(a)   Authorized: Unl imited number of common shares  without par value

 

(b)   Issued:

 2023 2022
Common shares Shares Amounts Shares Amounts
Balance beginning of the year 218,401,931 57,810,735 213,389,643 56,698,237
   Issued from warrants  exercised 67,462,417 16,019,060 4,637,288 1,094,574
   Issued from options  exercised - - 375,000 17,924
Balance at end of the year 285,864,348 73,829,795 218,401,931 57,810,735

 

(b)   Stock options:

The Company has  a  stock op�on plan that provides  for the issuance to i ts  directors , officers ,

employees  and consultants  op�ons to purchase a number of non-transferable common shares

not exceeding 10% of the common shares  that are outstanding. The exercise price is  based on

the clos ing price of the Company's  common shares  on the day prior to the day of the grant. A

summary of the Company stock op�on plan as  at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and changes

during the years  ended on those dates  is  presented below:

 

 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022  

Stock Options
Number of

options

Weighted
average
exercise

Price
(CAD $)

Number of
options

Weighted
average

exercise price
(CAD $)

 

Beginning of period 20,590,000 $0.24 17,114,000 $0.18  
Granted 1,650,000 $0.33 10,028,332 $0.27  
Expired/Forfeited (1,375,000) $0.46 (2,794,000) $0.12  
Exercised (333,332) $0.28 (3,758,332) $0.11  
End of period 20,531,668 $0.24 20,590,000 $0.24  
Exercisable, end of period 9,879,441 $0.23 3,395,000 $0.42  

Date of Grant
Number

Outstanding

Exercise
Price

(CAD $)

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life
Date of
Expiry

Number
Exercisable

December 31,
2023

October 22,
2018

750,000 $1.15 Oct. 22, 2028 750,000

May 3, 2019 270,000 $0.31 May 3, 2029 270,000
March 20, 2020 1,200,000 $0.05 Mar. 20, 2030 1,200,000
April 13, 2020 2,000,000 $0.05 April 13, 2030 2,000,000
December 13,
2021

5,966,668 $0.13 June 13, 2024 and 2025 2,983,332

June 9, 2022 1,966,668 $0.28 Dec. 9, 2023, 2024 and
2025

433,333

September 7,
2022

1,250,000 $0.26 Mar. 7, 2024, 2025 and
2026

416,666

December 21, 5,478,332 $0.28 June 21, 2024, 2025 and 1,826,110



December 21,
2022

5,478,332 $0.28 June 21, 2024, 2025 and
2026

1,826,110

January 23,
2023

650,000 $0.32 July 23, 2024, 2025 and
2026

-

September 21,
2023

1,000,000 $0.33 Mar. 21, 2025, 2026 and
2027

-

Total 20,531,668 $0.23 2.23 years  9,879,441

 

During 2023, the Company recognized $591,454 as  share-based compensa�on expense (2022 -

$582,405), with a  corresponding effect in the contributed surplus  account.

 

 
14.    Income taxes

 
 

The provis ion for income taxes  varies  from the amount that would be computed by applying the

expected tax rate to income (loss) before income taxes. The principal  reasons  for differences

between such expected income tax expense and the amount actual ly recorded are as  fol lows:

 
2023 2022

Income before income taxes $  3,034,919 $  8,437,634
Corporate income tax rate 23% 23%
Computed expected tax expense 698,031 1,940,656
Increase (decrease) in income taxes  resulting from:  

Share-based compensation 136,034 133,953
(Recognized)/unrecognized deferred tax benefi ts 1,062,373 1,144,776
Tax rate di fference on foreign jurisdictions 2,776,675 2,396,640
Other permanent di fference 235,092 1,601,222
Change in deferred tax asset - 932,088
Foreign exchange and others   (766,673) (58,225)

Income tax expense (recovery) $  4,141,532 $  8,091,110

 

  As  at December 31, 2023, the Company recognized a deferred income tax asset of $2,031,383

(2022: $872,286) as  i t was  probable that the Company met the recogni�on cri terion in a  legal

en�ty in Colombia based on management's  projec�on of future taxable profit. The Company did

not recognize $1,003,769 (2022: ni l ) of deferred tax assets  rela�ng to temporary differences  in

this  legal  enti ty.

 

As  at December 31, 2023, the Company recognized a deferred tax l iabi l i ty of $3,269,894 (2022:

$5,066,684) which represents  the tax impact of temporary differences  in another Colombian legal

en�ty. I n Colombia, the enacted tax rate is  35% with an addi�onal  tax rate of 5%, 10% or 15% for

oi l  producers , subject to interna�onal  oi l  prices . The current and deferred tax rate appl ied in

Colombia was 45% in 2023 (2022: 35% and 45% respec�vely). The components  of the Company's

deferred income tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  are as  fol lows:

 

 

 
As at December 31 2023 2022
Property and equipment $   (2,784,879) $   (9,089,462)
Decommiss ioning l iabi l i ties  and other provis ions 1,530,755 1,285,642
Carryforward non-capital  losses 1,019,383 3,609,422
   Net change in deferred tax $   (234,741) $   (4,194,398)
   Deferred tax l iabi l i ty 3,269,894 5,066,684
   Unrecognized deferred tax asset (1,003,770) -
   Deferred tax asset $     2,031,383 $    

872,286

 

At December 31, 2023, the Company had non-capital  losses  carried forward of approximately

$48,458,462 (2022 - $47,846,426) avai lable to reduce future years  taxable income. These losses

commence expiring in 2029.  At December 31, 2023, the Company had income tax credits  and

benefi ts , including non-capital  losses , of approximately $59,964,309 (2022 - $53,664,028) related

to Canada that were not recognized in the financial  s tatements  due to uncertain�es  associated

with i ts  abi l i ty to uti l i ze these balances  in the future.

 
 
15.    Commitments and Contingencies

 

 

Exploration and Production Contracts



The Company has  entered into a  number of explora�on contracts  in Colombia which require the

Company to fulfil l  work program commitments  and issue financial  guarantees  related thereto. I n

aggregate, the Company has  outstanding explora�on commitments  at December 31, 2023 of $12

mil l ion. During 2023, the ANH approved to cancel the Macaya and Los  P icachos blocks  contracts

by mutual  agreement, cancel l ing $5.8 mi l l ion in commitments  for the Company. The Company has

made an appl ica�on to the ANH to mutual ly cancel  i ts  CO R-39 contract. P resented below are the

Company's  exploration and production contractual  commitments  at December 31, 2023:

Block  Less than 1 year 1-3 years Thereafter Total
COR-39 - 12,000,000 - 12,000,000

Total  -
  

12,000,000 - 12,000,000

 

Contingencies

From �me to �me, the Company may be involved in l i�ga�on or has  cla ims sought against i t in the

normal  course of bus iness  opera�ons.  Management of the Company is  not currently aware of any

cla ims or ac�ons that would materia l ly affect the Company's  reported financial  pos i�on or

results  from opera�ons. Under the terms of certain agreements  and the Company's  by-laws the

Company indemnifies  individuals  who have acted at the Company's  request to be a director

and/or officer of the Company, to the extent permiRed by law, against any and al l  damages,

l iabi l i ties , costs , charges  or expenses  suffered by or incurred by the individuals  as  a  result of their

service.

Letters of Credit

At December 31, 2023, the Company had obl iga�ons under LeRers  of Credit ("LC's") outstanding

total ing $2.8 mi l l ion to guarantee work commitments  on explora�on blocks  and other contractual

commitments . I n the event the Company fa i ls  to secure the renewal  of the leRers  of credit

underlying the ANH guarantees, or any of them, the ANH could decide to cancel  the underlying

exploration and production contract for a  particular block, as  appl icable.

 

 

 

 

Current Outstanding Letters of Credit

Contract Beneficiary Issuer Type Amount
(US $) Renewal Date

SANTA ISABEL
ANH Carrao Energy Abandonment $563,894 April 14, 2025
ANH Carrao Energy Financial Capacity $1,672,162 June 30, 2024

CORE - 39 ANH Carrao Energy Compliance $100,000 June 30, 2024
OMBU ANH Carrao Energy Financial Capacity $436,300 October 14, 2024
Total  $2,772,356  

 

 
16.    Risk Management

 

 

The Company holds  various  forms of financial  instruments . The nature of these instruments  and

the Company's  opera�ons expose the Company to commodity price, credit and foreign exchange

risks . The Company manages  i ts  exposure to these risks  by opera�ng in a  manner that minimizes

i ts  exposure to the extent practical .

 

(a)    Commodity price risk

Commodity price risk i s  the risk that the fa ir value or future cash flows of a  financial

instrument wi l l  fluctuate as  a  result of changes  in commodity prices .  Lower commodity

prices  can also impact the Company's  abi l i ty to ra ise capital .  Commodity prices  for crude oi l

are impacted by world economic events  that dictate the levels  of supply and demand.  There

were no derivative contracts  during 2023 and 2022.

 

(b)    Credit Risk

Credit risk reflects  the risk of loss  i f counterpar�es  do not fulfil l  their contractual

obl iga�ons. The majori ty of the Company's  account receivable balances  relate to petroleum

and natural  gas  sales .  The Company's  pol icy is  to enter into agreements  with customers  that

are wel l  establ ished and wel l  financed en��es in the oi l  and gas  industry such that the level



are wel l  establ ished and wel l  financed en��es in the oi l  and gas  industry such that the level

of risk i s  mi�gated. I n Colombia, a  s ignificant por�on of the sales  is  with a  producing

company and a commodi�es  trader under exis�ng sale/oVake agreements  with prepayment

provis ions  and priced us ing the Brent benchmark. The Company's  trade account receivables

primari ly relate to sales  of crude oi l  and natural  gas , which are normal ly col lected within 25

days  (in Canada) and up to 15 days  (in Colombia) aMer the month of produc�on.  O ther

accounts  receivable mainly relate to balances  owed by the Company's  partner in one of i ts

blocks , and are mainly recoverable through join bi l l ings . The Company has  historical ly not

experienced any col lection issues  with i ts  customers  and partners .

 

(c)    Market Risk

Market risk i s  comprised of two components: foreign currency exchange risk and interest rate

risk.

 

i )      Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

The Company operates  on an interna�onal  bas is  and therefore foreign exchange

risk exposures  arise from transac�ons denominated in currencies  other than the

United States  dol lar. The Company is  exposed to foreign currency fluctua�ons as

i t holds  cash and incurs  expenditures  in explora�on and evalua�on and

administra�ve costs  in foreign currencies . The Company incurs  expenditures  in

Canadian dol lars , United States  dol lars , Bri�sh Pounds and the Colombian peso

and is  exposed to fluctua�ons in exchange rates  in these currencies . There are no

exchange rate contracts  in place.

 

i i )       Interest Rate Risk

I nterest rate risk i s  the risk that future cash flows wi l l  fluctuate as  a  result of

changes  in market interest rates . The Company is  not currently exposed to interest

rate risk.

 

(d)    Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk includes  the risk that, as  a  result of the Company's  opera�onal  l iquidity

requirements:

·      The Company wi l l  not have sufficient funds  to settle a  transaction on the due date;

·      The Company wi l l  be forced to sel l  financial  assets  at a  value which is  less  than what

they are worth; or

·      The Company may be unable to settle or recover a  financial  asset.

 

The Company's  approach to managing i ts  l iquidity risk i s  to ensure, within reasonable

means, sufficient l iquidity to meet i ts  l iabi l i�es  when due, under both normal  and unusual

condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses  or jeopardizing the Company's  bus iness

objectives .

 

The Company prepares  annual  capital  expenditure budgets  which are monitored regularly

and updated as  cons idered necessary.  Petroleum and natural  gas  produc�on is  monitored

dai ly to provide current cash flow es�mates  and the Company u�l izes  authoriza�ons for

expenditures  on projects  to manage capital  expenditures . Any funding shortfal l  may be met in

a number of ways, including, but not l imited to, the issuance of new debt or equity

instruments , further expenditure reductions  and/or the introduction of joint venture partners .

 

(e)     Capital  Management

The Company's  objec�ve is  to maintain a  capital  base sufficient to provide flexibi l i ty in the

future development of the bus iness  and maintain investor, creditor and market confidence. 

The Company manages  i ts  capital  s tructure and makes  adjustments  in response to changes  in

economic condi�ons and the risk characteris�cs  of the underlying assets . The Company

considers  i ts  capital  s tructure to include share capital , bank debt (when avai lable),

promissory notes  and working capital , defined as  current assets  less  current l iabi l i�es. 

From �me to �me the Company may issue common shares  or other securi�es, sel l  assets  or

adjust i ts  capital  spending to manage current and projected debt levels . The Company

adjusts  i ts  capital  s tructure based on i ts  net debt level .  Net debt is  defined as  the principal

amount of i ts  outstanding debt, less  working capital  i tems.  The Company prepares  annual



amount of i ts  outstanding debt, less  working capital  i tems.  The Company prepares  annual

budgets , which are updated as  necessary including current and forecast crude oi l  prices ,

changes  in capital  s tructure, execu�on of the Company's  bus iness  plan and general  industry

condi�ons.  The annual  budget is  approved by the Board of Directors . The Company's  capital

includes  the fol lowing:

 
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Working capital $        8,669,114 $        (1,316,665)
Derivative l iabi l i ty - 9,540,423

 $        8,669,114        $        8,223,758

 

 
17.    Key Management Personnel

 

 

The Company has  determined that key management personnel  cons ists  of i ts  execu�ve

management and i ts  Board of Directors . I n addi�on to the salaries  and fees  paid to key

management, the Company also provides  compensa�on to both groups under i ts  share-based

compensation plans. Compensation expenses  paid to key management personnel  were as  fol lows:

 
Years ended December 31

2023 2022
Salaries , severances  and director fees $      2,945,303 $      2,389,033
Share-based compensation 373,093 568,565

 $      3,318,396        $      2,957,598       

 

 

During 2023, the Company granted loans  to some of i ts  execu�ves  and Directors  in the form of

promissory notes , which are due on demand and bear interest at the average Bank of Canada I nterbank

Rate (currently 5%). The  current aggregate balance receivable of these loans  is  $682,197, including

interest of $9,650, and is  included as  other account receivables .

 

 

 

 
18.    Segmented Information

 

 

The Company has  two reportable opera�ng segments: Colombia and Canada. The Company,

through i ts  opera�ng segments , i s  engaged primari ly in oi l  explora�on, development and

produc�on, and the acquis i�on of oi l  and gas  proper�es. The Canada segment is  a lso cons idered

the corporate segment. The fol lowing tables  show informa�on regarding the Company's  segments

for the years  ended and as  at December 31:

 
Year ended December 31, 2023 Colombia  Canada  Total  
Revenue:  

Oil Sales $ 48,979,764 $                           -  $ 48,979,764
Natural gas and liquid sales

-  
          

1,617,022
          

1,617,022
Royalties (5,909,659)  (17,121) (5,926,780)
Expenses

(23,278,021)  (6,557,326)
       

(29,835,347)
Impairment loss of oil and gas properties (10,551,340) (1,248,400) (11,799,740)
Income taxes (4,141,532)                           -  (4,141,532)

Net income (loss) $ 5,099,212 $       (6,205,825) $ (1,106,613)

 
As at December 31, 2023  Colombia  Canada  Total
Current assets $ 16,704,873 $ 4,924,325 $ 21,629,198
Non-current:       

Deferred income taxes 2,031,383                           -  2,031,383
Restricted cash 37,808 205,273 243,081
Exploration and evaluation -                           -  -
Property, plant and equipment 35,321,510 3,049,851 38,371,361

Total Assets $ 54,095,574 $ 8,179,449   $ 62,275,023
Current liabilities $ 11,507,227 $ 1,452,857 $ 12,960,084
Non-current liabilities:

Deferred income taxes 3,269,894                           -  3,269,894
Other liabilities 345,528                           -  345,528
Lease obligation -  216,919 216,919
Decommissioning liability 3,316,026 657,049 3,973,075

Total liabilities $ 18,438,675 $ 2,326,825 $ 20,765,500

 



 

 

Year ended December 31, 2022 Colombia Canada Total  
 

Revenue:  
Oil Sales $

23,723,228
$

                          -  
$        

23,723,228
Natural gas and liquid sales

-  
          

4,412,026 4,412,026
Royalties (2,513,730)  (648,060) (3,161,790)
Expenses

(11,984,561)  (13,571,923)
       

(25,556,484)
Impairment reversal (loss) of oil and gas
properties  10,409,615  (1,388,961) 9,020,654
Taxes (8,091,110)                           -  (8,091,110)

Net income (loss)
$

11,543,442
$      

(11,196,918)
$

346,524

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As at December 31, 2022 Colombia Canada Total
Current assets $ 14,679,159 $ 2,825,066 $ 17,504,225
Non-current:

Deferred income taxes 872,286                           -  872,286
Restricted cash 37,808 570,319 608,127
Exploration and evaluation -                           -  -
Property, plant and equipment 29,270,430 4,935,180 34,205,610

Total Assets $ 44,859,683 $ 8,330,565 $ 53,190,248

Current liabilities $ 5,474,361 $ 13,346,529 $ 18,820,890
Non-current liabilities:

Deferred income taxes 5,066,684                           -  5,066,684
Other liabilities 80,484                           -  80,484
Lease obligation -                     22,317 22,317
Decommissioning liability 2,568,141 735,160 3,303,301

Total liabilities $ 13,189,670 $ 14,104,006 $ 27,293,676
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This  Management's  D iscuss ion and Analys is  ("M D&A") as  provided by the management of Arrow Explora�on Corp.

("Arrow" or the "Company"), i s  dated as  of Apri l  28, 2024 and should be read in conjunc�on with Arrow's  annual

consol idated financial  s tatements  and related notes  for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. Addi�onal

information relating to Arrow is  avai lable under Arrow's  profi le on www.sedar.com.

Advisories

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IF RS"), and all amounts herein are expressed in United States dollars, unless otherwise noted, and all tabular amounts
are expressed in United States dollars, unless otherwise noted.  A ddi.onal informa.on for the Company may be found on
SEDAR at www.sedar.com. 

Advisory Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This M D&A  contains certain statements or disclosures rela.ng to A rrow that are based on the expecta.ons of its
management as well as assump.ons made by and informa.on currently available to A rrow which may cons.tute
forward-looking statements or informa.on ("forward-looking statements") under applicable securi.es laws. A ll such
statements and disclosures, other than those of historical fact, which address ac.vi.es, events, outcomes, results or
developments that A rrow an.cipates or expects may, could or will occur in the future (in whole or in part) should be
considered forward-looking statements. In some cases, forward-looking statements can be iden.fied by the use of the
words "believe", "con.nue", "could", "expect", "likely", "may", "outlook", "plan", "poten.al", "will", "would" and similar
expressions. In par.cular, but without limi.ng the foregoing, this M D&A  contains forward-looking statements pertaining
to the following: the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact; tax liability; capital management strategy; capital structure;
credit facili.es and other debt; performance by Canacol (as defined herein) and the Company in connec.on with the Note
(as defined herein) and leEers of credit; A rrow's costless collar structure;; cost reduc.on ini.a.ves; poten.al drilling on the
Tapir block; capital requirements; expenditures associated with asset re.rement obliga.ons; future drilling ac.vity and the
development of the Rio Cravo Este structure on the Tapir Block. Statements rela.ng to "reserves" and "resources" are
deemed to be forward-looking informa.on, as they involve the implied assessment, based on certain es.mates and
assump.ons, that the reserves and resources described exist in the quan..es predicted or es.mated and can be profitably
produced in the future.

The forward-looking statements contained in this M D&A  reflect several material factors and expecta.ons and
assump.ons of A rrow including, without limita.on: current and an.cipated commodity prices and royalty regimes; the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic; the financial impact of A rrow's costless collar structure; availability of skilled labour;
.ming and amount of capital expenditures; future exchange rates; commodity prices; the impact of increasing
compe..on; general economic condi.ons; availability of drilling and related equipment; receipt of partner, regulatory and
community approvals; royalty rates; changes in income tax laws or changes in tax laws and incen.ve programs; future
opera.ng costs; effects of regula.on by governmental agencies; uninterrupted access to areas of A rrow's opera.ons and
infrastructure; recoverability of reserves; future produc.on rates; .ming of drilling and comple.on of wells; pipeline
capacity; that A rrow will have sufficient cash flow, debt or equity sources or other financial resources required to fund its
capital and opera.ng expenditures and requirements as needed; that A rrow's conduct and results of opera.ons will be
consistent with its expecta.ons; that A rrow will have the ability to develop its oil and gas proper.es in the manner
currently contemplated; current or, where applicable, proposed industry condi.ons, laws and regula.ons will con.nue in
effect or as an.cipated; that the es.mates of A rrow's reserves and produc.on volumes and the assump.ons related
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effect or as an.cipated; that the es.mates of A rrow's reserves and produc.on volumes and the assump.ons related
thereto (including commodity prices and development costs) are accurate in all material respects; that A rrow will be able
to obtain contract extensions or fulfil the contractual obliga.ons required to retain its rights to explore, develop and
exploit any of its undeveloped properties; and other matters.

A rrow believes the material factors, expecta.ons and assump.ons reflected in the forward-looking statements are
reasonable at this .me but no assurance can be given that these factors, expecta.ons and assump.ons will prove to be
correct. The forward-looking statements included in this M D&A  are not guarantees of future performance and should not
be unduly relied upon.

Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual
results or events to differ materially from those an.cipated in such forward-looking statements including, without
limita.on: the impact of general economic condi.ons; vola.lity in commodity prices; industry condi.ons including
changes in laws and regula.ons including adop.on of new environmental laws and regula.ons, and changes in how
they are interpreted and enforced; compe..on; lack of availability of qualified personnel; the results of explora.on and
development drilling and related ac.vi.es; obtaining required approvals of regulatory authori.es; counterparty risk; risks
associated with nego.a.ng with foreign governments as well as country risk associated with conduc.ng interna.onal
ac.vi.es; commodity price vola.lity; fluctua.ons in foreign exchange or interest rates; environmental risks; changes in
income tax laws or changes in tax laws and incen.ve programs; changes to pipeline capacity; ability to secure a credit
facility; ability to access sufficient capital from internal and external sources; risk that A rrow's evalua.on of its exis.ng
porJolio of development and explora.on opportuni.es is not consistent with future results; that produc.on may not
necessarily be indica.ve of long term performance or of ul.mate recovery; and certain other risks detailed from .me to
.me in A rrow's public disclosure documents including, without limita.on, those risks iden.fied in A rrow's 2018 A IF, a copy
of which is available on A rrow's S EDA R profile at www.sedar.com. Readers are cau.oned that the foregoing list of factors
is not exhaustive and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. 

Non-IFRS Measures

The Company uses non-IF RS measures to evaluate its performance which are measures not defined in IF RS. Working
capital, funds flow from opera.ons, realized prices, opera.ng netback, adjusted EB ITDA , and net debt as presented do not
have any standardized meaning prescribed by IF RS and therefore may not be comparable with the calcula.on of similar
measures for other en..es. The Company considers these measures as key measures to demonstrate its ability to generate
the cash flow necessary to fund future growth through capital investment, and to repay its debt, as the case may be. These
measures should not be considered as an alterna.ve to, or more meaningful than net income or cash provided by (used
in) opera.ng ac.vi.es or net income and comprehensive income as determined in accordance with IF RS as an indicator of
the Company's performance. The Company's determina.on of these measures may not be comparable to that reported by
other companies.

A djusted working capital is calculated as current assets minus current liabili.es, excluding non-cash liabili.es; funds from
opera.ons is calculated as cash flows provided by opera.ng ac.vi.es adjusted to exclude changes in non-cash working
capital balances; realized price is calculated by dividing gross revenue by gross produc.on, by product, in the applicable
period; opera.ng netback is calculated as total natural gas and crude revenues minus royal.es, transporta.on costs and
opera.ng expenditures; adjusted EB ITDA  is calculated as net income adjusted for interest, income taxes, deprecia.on,
deple.on, amor.za.on and other similar non-recurring or non-cash charges; and net debt (net cash) is defined as the
principal amount of its outstanding debt, less working capital items excluding non-cash liabilities. 

The Company also presents funds from opera.ons per share, whereby per share amounts are calculated using weighted-
average shares outstanding consistent with the calculation of net income per share.

A reconciliation of the non-IFRS measures is included as follows:

 
 
(in United States dollars)

Three months
ended December

31, 2023

Year ended
December 31,

2023

Thre e  months
e nde d

De ce mbe r 31,
2022

Ye a r e nde d
De ce mbe r 31,

2022

Net (loss) income  (10,492,053  (1,106,613) 2,968,117 346,524

Add/(subtract):   

   Sha re  ba s e d pa yme nts  151,094 591,454  367,693 582,405

   Fi na nci ng cos ts :   

      Accre ti on on de commi s s i oni ng obl i ga ti ons 31,840 127,478 55,274 199,521

      Inte re s t 9,420 141,117 92,320 460,233

      Othe r  79,540 317,676 45,693 330,797

   De pre ci a ti on a nd de pl e ti on 2,119,374 12,186,777 1,878,557 5,528,489

   (Ga i n) l os s  on de ri va ti ve  l i a bi l i ty  (932,379)  (1,041,992) 1,005,740 5,974,674

   Impa i rme nt (re ve rs a l ) of oi l  a nd ga s  prope rti e s 11,799,740 11,799,740  (9,020,654)  (9,020,654)

   Income  ta x e xpe ns e , curre nt a nd de fe rre d 4,365,846  4,141,532 7,064,017 8,091,110

Adjusted EBITDA (1) 7,132,422 27,157,169 4,456,757 12,493,099

  

Cash flows provided by operating activities 2,581,686 16,476,551 7,011,946 12,036,550

Minus - Changes in non cash working capital balances:   

Trade and other receivables 772,704 1,001,992  (1,519,574) 1,928,707

Restricted cash  (1,138) 36,052 220,588 86,228

Taxes receivable 2,920,256 3,854,222  (279,138) 82,129

Deposits and prepaid expenses 72,504 39,943  (4,412)  (164,840)

Inventory  (393,185)  (213,345)                           
38 458,613

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (239,606) 414,757  (1,980,243)  (3,445,263)



Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (239,606) 414,757  (1,980,243)  (3,445,263)

Income tax payable  (1,932,188)  (1,619,588)  (1,488,916)  (1,488,916)

Funds flow from operations (1) 3,781,033 19,990,584 1,960,289 9,493,208

 (1)Non-IFRS measures

 

The term barrel of oil equivalent ("boe") is used in this M D&A .  Boe may be misleading, par.cularly if used in isola.on.  A
boe conversion ra.o of 6 thousand cubic feet ("Mcf") of natural gas to one barrel of oil ("bbl") is used in the M D&A . This
conversion ra.o of 6:1 is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner .p and
does not represent a value equivalency at the wellhead. 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

 
 
(in United States dollars, except as otherwise noted)

Three months
ended December

31, 2023

Year ended
December
31, 2023

Thre e  months
e nde d

De ce mbe r 31,
2022

Ye a r e nde d
De ce mbe r

31, 2022

Tota l  na tura l  ga s  a nd crude  oi l  re ve nue s , ne t of
roya l ti e s 13,406,513 44,670,006 8,931,562 24,973,464

  

Funds  fl ow from ope ra ti ons  (1) 3,781,033 19,990,584 1,960,289 9,493,208

Funds  fl ow from ope ra ti ons  (1) pe r s ha re  -   

    Ba s i c($) 0.01 0.08 0.01 0.04

    Di l ute d ($) 0.01 0.07 0.01 0.03

Ne t (l os s ) i ncome  (10,492,053)  (1,106,613) 2,968,117 346,524
Ne t (l os s ) i ncome  pe r s ha re  -   
   Ba s i c ($)  (0.04)  (0.00) 0.01 0.00
   Di l ute d ($)  (0.04)  (0.00) 0.01 0.00

Adjus te d EBITDA (1)               
7,132,422 27,157,169 4,456,757 12,493,099

We i ghte d a ve ra ge  s ha re s  outs ta ndi ng:   
   Ba s i c 278,144,305 242,537,228 217,784,100 215,468,129
   Di l ute d 291,404,032 289,903,094 288,239,348 279,288,480
Common s ha re s  e nd of pe ri od 285,864,348 285,864,348 218,401,931 218,401,931

Ca pi ta l  e xpe ndi ture s 10,471,447 27,084,959 2,106,463 7,668,988

Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts 12,135,376 12,135,376 13,060,968 13,060,968

Curre nt a s s e ts             
21,629,198 21,629,198 17,504,225 17,504,225

Curre nt l i a bi l i ti e s             
12,960,084 12,960,084 18,820,890 18,820,890

Adjus te d worki ng ca pi ta l (1)               
8,669,114 8,669,114 8,223,758 8,223,758

Re s tri cte d ca s h a nd de pos i ts (2)                  
854,834 854,834 765,586 765,586

Tota l  a s s e ts 62,275,023 62,275,023 53,190,248 53,190,248

 
Operating  

 
Natural gas and crude oil production, before royalties  
Na tura l  ga s  (Mcf/d) 1,819 2,150 3,270 2,958  
Na tura l  ga s  l i qui ds  (bbl /d) 4 4 6 5  
Crude  oi l  (bbl /d) 2,027 1,805 1,185 847  
Total (boe/d) 2,335 2,167 1,736 1,345  

    
Operating netbacks ($/boe) (1)    
Na tura l  ga s  ($/Mcf) ($0.21) ($0.13) $0.57 $1.01  
Crude  oi l  ($/bbl ) $45.91 $53.97 $57.88 $65.06  
Total ($/boe) $40.49 $45.17 $41.95 $42.40  

(1)Non-IFRS measures - see "Non-IFRS Measures" section within this MD&A

(2)Long term restricted cash not included in working capital

 

The Company

Arrow is  a  junior oi l  and gas  company engaged in the acquis i�on, explora�on and development of oi l  and gas
proper�es  in Colombia and Western Canada. The Company's  shares  trade on the TSX  Venture Exchange and the
London AIM exchange under the symbol  AXL.

The Company and Arrow Explora�on Ltd. entered into an arrangement agreement dated June 1, 2018, as  amended,
whereby the par�es  completed a bus iness  combina�on pursuant to a  plan of arrangement under the Business
Corpora.ons A ct (Alberta ) ("ABC A") on September 28, 2018. Arrow Explora�on Ltd. and Front Range's  then whol ly-
owned subs idiary, 2118295 Alberta Ltd., were amalgamated to form Arrow Holdings  Ltd., a  whol ly-owned subs idiary
of the Company (the "Arrangement"). O n May 31, 2018, Arrow Explora�on Ltd. entered in a  share purchase agreement,



of the Company (the "Arrangement"). O n May 31, 2018, Arrow Explora�on Ltd. entered in a  share purchase agreement,
as  amended, with Canacol  Energy Ltd. ("Canacol"), to acquire Canacol 's  Colombian oi l  proper�es held by i ts  whol ly-
owned subs idiary Carrao Energy S.A. ("Carrao"). O n September 27, 2018, Arrow Explora�on Ltd. closed the agreement
with Canacol .

O n May 31, 2018, Arrow Explora�on Ltd., entered into a  purchase and sale agreement to acquire a  50% beneficial
interest in a  contract entered into with Ecopetrol  S .A. pertaining to the explora�on and produc�on of hydrocarbons in
the Tapir block from Samaria  Explora�on & P roduc�on S.A. ("Samaria"). O n September 27, 2018, Arrow Explora�on
Ltd. closed the agreement with Samaria. As  at December 31, 2023 the Company held an interest in four oi l  blocks  in
Colombia and oi l  and natural  gas  leases  in five areas  in Canada as  fol lows:

 

  Gross Acres Working Interest Net Acres
COLOMBIA
Ta pi r Ope ra te d1 65,125 50% 32,563

Os o Pa rdo Ope ra te d 672 100% 672

Ombu Non-ope ra te d 56,482 10% 5,648

COR-39 Ope ra te d 95,111 100% 95,111

Total Colombia  217,390  133,994

CANADA

Ans e l l Ope ra te d 640 100% 640

Fi r Non ope ra te d 7,680 32% 2,458

Pe nhol d Non-ope ra te d 480 13% 61

Pe ppe r Ope ra te d 19,200 100% 19,200

Wa pi ti Non-ope ra te d 1,280 13% 160

Total Canada  29,280  22,519

TOTAL  246,670  156,513

The Company's  primary producing assets  are located in Colombia in the Tapir, O so Pardo and O mbu blocks , with
natural  gas  production in Canada at Fi r and Pepper, Alberta.

 

Llanos Basin

W ithin the Llanos  Bas in, the Company is  engaged in the explora�on, development and produc�on of oi l  within the
Tapir block. I n the Llanos  Bas in most oi l  accumula�ons are associated with three-way dip closure against NNE-S SW
trending normal  faults  and can have pay within mul�ple reservoirs . The Tapir block contain large areas  not yet
covered by 3D seismic, and in Management's  opinion offer substantia l  exploration ups ide. 

1The Company's  interest in the Tapir block is  held through a private contract with Petrolco, who holds  a  50%
par�cipa�ng interest in, and is  the named operator of, the Tapir contract with Ecopetrol . The formal  ass ignment to
the Company is  subject to Ecopetrol 's  consent. The Company is  the de facto operator pursuant to certain agreements
with Petrolco (detai ls  of which are set out in Paragraph 16.13 of the Company's  AI M Admiss ion Document dated
October 20, 2021).

Middle Magdalena Valley ("MMV") Basin

Oso Pardo Field

The O so Pardo Field is  located in the Santa I sabel  Block in the M M V Bas in.  I t i s  a  100% owned property operated by
the Company.  The O so Pardo field is  located within a  P roduc�on Licence covering 672 acres . Three wel ls  have been
dri l led to date within the l icensed area.

Ombu E&P Contract - Capella Conventional Heavy Oil Discovery

The Caguan Bas in covers  an area of approximately 60,000 km2 and l ies  between the P utumayo and Llanos  Bas ins . The
primary reservoir target i s  the Upper Eocene aged Mirador forma�on. The Capel la  structure is  a  large, elongated
northeast-southwest fault-related an�cl ine, with approximately 17,500 acres  in closure at the Mirador level . The
field is  located approximately 250 km away from the nearest offloading sta�on at Neiva, where produc�on from
Capel la  i s  trucked.

The Capel la  No. 1 discovery wel l  was  dri l led in July 2008 and was fol lowed by a  series  of development wel ls . The
Company earned a 10% working interest in the O mbu E&P  Contract by paying 100% of a l l  ac�vi�es  associated with
the dri l l ing, comple�on, and tes�ng of the Capel la  No. 1 wel l . The Capel la  field is  currently suspended and
temporari ly shut in.

Fir, Alberta

The Company has  an average non-operated 32% W I  in 12 gross  (3.84 net) sec�ons of oi l  and natural  gas  rights  and
17 gross  (4.5 net) producing natural  gas  wel ls  at F i r. The wel ls  produce raw natural  gas  into the Ceci l ia  natural  gas
plant where i t i s  processed.

Pepper, Alberta

The Company holds  a  100% operated W I  in 37 sec�ons of Montney P &NG rights  on i ts  Pepper asset in West Central



The Company holds  a  100% operated W I  in 37 sec�ons of Montney P &NG rights  on i ts  Pepper asset in West Central
Alberta. The 6-26-53-23W 5M Montney gas  wel l  (West Pepper) i s  �ed into the Gal loway gas  plant for process ing. The
3-21-52-22W 5M Montney gas  wel l  (East Pepper) i s  currently �ed into the Sundance gas  plant for process ing. The
majori ty of lands  have tenure extending into 2025.

Year ended December 31, 2023 Financial and Operational Highlights
·      For the year ended December 31, 2023, Arrow recorded $44,670,006 in revenues, net of royalties , on crude

oi l  sa les  of 679,769 bbls , 1,445 bbls  of natural  gas  l iquids  ("NGL's") and 784,717 Mcf of natural  gas  sales ;
·      Funds flow from operations  of $19,990,584;
·      Net loss  of $1,106,613 and adjusted EBITDA was $27,157,169;

 

 

Three Months Ended December 31, 2023 Financial and Operational Highlights
·      Arrow recorded $13,406,513 in revenues, net of royalties , on crude oi l  sa les  of 212,635 bbls , 380 bbls  of

natural  gas  l iquids  ("NGL's") and 167,360 Mcf of natural  gas  sales ;
·      Funds flow from operations  of $3,781,033;
·      Net loss  of $10,492,053 and adjusted EBITDA was $7,132,422;

Annual 2023 Reserve Highlights
·      5,292 Mboe of Proved Reserves, net increase of 57% when compared to 2022;
·      11,847 Mboe of Proved plus  Probable Reserves, net increase of 54% when compared to 2022;
·      Proved reserves  estimated net present value, before income taxes, of US$135 mi l l ion us ing a  10% discount

rate;
·      Proved plus  Probable Reserves  estimated net present value, before income taxes, of US$280 mi l l ion us ing a

10% discount rate

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company increased i ts  produc�on from new wel ls  at both Rio Cravo Este and Carrizales  Norte fields  in the Tapir
block. These have al lowed the Company to con�nue to improve i ts  opera�ng results  and EB I TDA.  There has  a lso been
a decrease in the Company's  natural  gas  production in Canada due to natural  decl ines.
 

Average Production by Property

Average Production Boe/d YTD 2023 Q4 2023 Q3 2023 Q2 2023 Q1 2023 Q4 2022

Oso Pardo 110 80 93 130 138 115
Ombu (Capel la) 20 - - - 80 238
Rio Cravo Este (Tapir) 1,342 1,326 1,443 1,592 1,004 832
Carrizales  Norte (Tapir) 332 621 642 57 - -
Total Colombia 1,805 2,027 2,178 1,779 1,222 1,185
Fir, Alberta 78 80 81 77 74 79
Pepper, Alberta 284 228 259 313 340 472

TOTAL (Boe/d) 2,167 2,335 2,518 2,169 1,635 1,736

The Company's  average produc�on for the year and the three months  ended December 31, 2023 was 2,167 boe/d and
2,335 boe/d, respec�vely, which cons isted of crude oi l  produc�on in Colombia of 1,805 bbl/d and 2,027 bbl/d,
natural  gas  produc�on of 2,150 Mcf/d and 1,819 Mcf/d, respec�vely, and minor amounts  of natural  gas  l iquids  from
the Company's  Canadian proper�es. The Company's  total  2023 produc�on was 67% higher than i ts  total  2022
production.

Average Daily Natural Gas and Oil Production and Sales Volumes

 
 

Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

2023 2022 2023 2022  
Natural Gas (Mcf/d)    
Natural  gas  production 1,819 3,270 2,150 2,958  
Natural  gas  sales 1,819 3,270 2,150 2,958  
Realized Contractual Natural Gas Sales 1,819 3,270 2,150 2,958  
Crude Oil (bbl/d)  
Crude oi l  production 2,027 1,185 1,805 847  
Inventory movements  and other 284 238 58  (64)  
Crude Oil Sales 2,311 1,424 1,862 782  
Corporate   
Natural  gas  production (boe/d) 303 545 358 493  
Natural  gas  l iquids(bbl/d) 4 6 4 5  
Crude oi l  production (bbl/d) 2,027 1,185 1,805 847  
Total  production (boe/d) 2,335 1,736 2,167 1,345  
Inventory movements  and other (boe/d) 284 238 58  (64)  
Total Corporate Sales (boe/d) 2,619 1,974 2,225 1,280  

During the three months  and year ended December 31, 2023 the majori ty of produc�on was aRributed to Colombia,
where most of Company's  blocks  were producing. I n Canada, the Company has  two operated and two non-operated
properties  located in the province of Alberta at Fi r, Pepper, Harley and Wapiti .

Natural Gas and Oil Revenues

Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

2023 2022 2023 2022



2023 2022 2023 2022

Natural Gas
Natural  gas  revenues 280,797  1,099,986 1,523,686 4,257,282

NGL revenues 25,964 34,978 93,336 154,744

Royalties (7,751)  (150,638)  (17,121)  (648,060)

Revenues, net of royalties 299,010 984,327 1,599,901 3,763,966

Oil
Oil  revenues 14,802,541 8,710,005 48,979,764 23,723,228

Royalties  (1,695,037)  (762,770)  (5,909,659)  (2,513,730)

Revenues, net of royalties 13,107,504 7,947,235 43,070,105 21,209,498

Corporate
Natural  gas  revenues 280,797 1,099,986 1,523,686 4,257,282

NGL revenues 25,964 34,978 93,336 154,744

Oi l  revenues 14,802,541 8,710,005 48,979,764 23,723,228

Total  revenues 15,109,301 9,844,970 50,596,786 28,135,254

Royalties  (1,702,788)  (913,408)  (5,926,780)  (3,161,790)

Natural gas and crude oil revenues, net of royalties 13,406,513 8,931,562 44,670,006 24,973,464

Natural  gas  and crude oi l  revenues, net of royal�es, for the three months  and year ended December 31, 2023 was
$13,406,513 (2022: $8,931,562) and $44,670,007 (2022: $24,973,464), respec�vely, which represent increases  of 50%
and 79%, respec�vely. These s ignificant increases  are mainly due to increased oi l  produc�on in Colombia, offset by
decrease in oi l  prices  and revenue in Canada.

 

 

 

 

Average Benchmark and Realized Prices 

Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 Change

Benchmark Prices   
AECO (C$/Mcf) $2.34 $4.42 (47%) $2.68 $4.34 (38%)
Brent ($/bbl) $77.32 $88.59 (13%) $81.03 $98.89 (18%)
West Texas  Intermediate ($/bbl) $78.35 $82.65 (5%) $77.60 $94.25 (18%)
Realized Prices   
Natural  gas , net of transportation ($/Mcf) $1.68 $3.66 (54%) $1.94 $3.94 (51%)
Natural  gas  l iquids  ($/bbl) $68.30 $68.28 0% $64.61 $79.52 (19%)
Crude oi l , net of transportation ($/bbl) $69.61 $72.29 (4%) $72.05 $83.10 (13%)

Corporate average, net of transport ($/boe)(1) $62.72 $57.53 9% $62.31 $60.20 4%
   (1)Non-IFRS measure

The Company real ized prices  of $62.72 and $62.31 per boe during the three months  and year ended December 31,
2023 (2022: $57.53 and $60.20), respec�vely,  despite decreases  in commodity prices  during 2023, due to increased
volumes of oi l  sold during 2023.

Operating Expenses

Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

2023 2022 2023 2022

Natural  gas  & NGL's 308,311 778,767 1,610,557 2,521,700
Crude oi l 3,343,948 973,224 6,380,615 2,637,368
 Total operating expenses 3,652,259 1,751,991 7,991,172 5,159,068
Natural  gas  ($/Mcf) $1.84 $2.59 $2.05 $2.34
Crude oi l  ($/bbl) $15.73 $8.08 $9.39 $9.24
Corporate ($/boe)(1) $15.16 $10.24 $9.84 $11.04
 (1)Non-IFRS measure

During the three months  and year ended December 31, 2023, Arrow incurred in opera�ng expenses  of $3,652,259 and
$7,991,172 (2022: $1,751,991 and $5,159,068), respec�vely. This  increase is  mainly due to workovers  completed
during 2023 for $1,575,121 and new opera�ng expenses  incurred in the Company's  new Carrizales  Norte field in the
Tapir block.

Operating Netbacks

 Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

 2023 2022 2023 2022

Natural Gas ($/Mcf)  
Revenue, net of transportation expense $1.68 $3.66 $1.94 $3.94

Royalties (0.05) (0.50) (0.02) (0.60)



Operating expenses (1.84) (2.59) (2.05) (2.34)

Natural Gas operating netback(1) ($0.21) $0.57 ($0.13) $1.01

Crude oil ($/bbl)  
Revenue, net of transportation expense $69.61 $72.29 $72.05 $83.10

Royalties (7.97) (6.33) (8.69) (8.81)

Operating expenses (15.73) (8.08) (9.39) (9.24)

Crude Oil operating netback(1) $45.91 $57.88 $53.97 $65.06

Corporate ($/boe)
Revenue, net of transportation expense $62.72 $57.53 $62.31 $60.20

Royalties (7.07) (5.34) (7.30) (6.77)

Operating expenses (15.16) (10.24) (9.84) (11.04)

Corporate Operating netback(1) $40.49 $41.95 $45.17 $42.40
 (1)Non-IFRS measure

The opera�ng netbacks  of the Company con�nued within healthy levels  during 2023 due increas ing produc�on from
its  Colombian assets , even cons idering decreased crude oi l  prices , which were offset by decreases  in natural  gas
prices  and operating expenses  for natural  gas .

General and Administrative Expenses (G&A)

 Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

 2023 2022 2023 2022

General  & administrative expenses 3,347,336 2,146,000 10,607,275 7,285,135

G&A recovered from 3rd parties  (196,436)  (172,169)  (665,411)  (561,934)

Total G&A 3,150,900 1,973,831 9,941,864 6,723,201

Cost per boe $13.08 $11.53 $12.24 $16.03

For the three months  and year ended December 31, 2023, G&A expenses  before recoveries  totaled $3,150,900 and
$9,941,864 (2022: $1,973,831 and $6,723,201), respec�vely, which represent an increase when compared to the
same periods  in 2022. These variances  are mainly due to addi�onal  personnel  and legal  services  during 2023, and
payment of performance bonuses  to management and employees. Despite these increased expenses, due to the
Company's  increased production, annual  G&A expenses  were reduced, on a per barrel  bas is , when compared to 2022.

Share-based Compensation

 Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

 2023 2022 2023 2022

Share-based Payments 151,094 367,693 591,454 582,405

Share-based compensa�on expense for the three months  and year ended December 31, 2023 totaled $151,094 and
$591,454 (2022: $367,693 and $582,405), respec�vely. During 2023, the Company has  granted 1,650,000 op�ons to
its  personnel  and Directors , which was offset by reversal  of expenses  from cancel led op�ons due to res igna�ons of
op�on holders . The share-based compensa�on expense is  the result of the progress ive ves�ng of the op�ons granted
to the Company's  employees  and Directors , net of cancel lations  and forfei tures .

 

 

Financing Costs

 Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

 2023 2022 2023 2022

Financing expense paid or payable 88,960 138,013 458,793 791,030
Non-cash financing costs 31,840 55,274 127,478 199,521

Net financing costs 120,800 193,287 586,271 990,551

The finance expense paid or payable represents  mostly interest on the promissory note due to Canacol , as  par�al
payment for the acquis i�on of Carrao Energy SA, and have decreased due to repayment of the outstanding balance.
The non-cash finance cost represents  an increase in the present value of the decommiss ioning obl iga�on for the
current periods. The amount of this  expense wi l l  fluctuate commensurate with the asset re�rement obl iga�on as  new
wel ls  are dri l led or properties  are acquired or disposed.

Depletion and Depreciation

 Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

 2023 2022 2023 2022

Depletion and depreciation 2,119,374 1,878,557 12,186,777 5,528,489

Deple�on and deprecia�on expense for the three months  and year ended December 31, 2023 totaled $2,119,374 and
$12,186,777 (2022: $1,878,557 and $5,528,489), respec�vely. The increase is  due to higher carrying value of
depletable property and equipment and increased produc�on. The Company uses  the unit of produc�on method and
proved plus  probable reserves  to calculate i ts  depletion and depreciation expense.

Impairment loss (reversal) of oil and gas properties, net



Impairment loss (reversal) of oil and gas properties, net

 Three months ended
December 31

Years ended
December 31

 2023 2022 2023 2022
Impairment loss (reversal) of oil and gas properties,
net

11,799,740 (9,020,654) 11,799,740 (9,020,654)

As  at December 31, 2023, the Company reviewed i ts  cash-genera�ng units  ("CGU") for property and equipment and

determined that there were indicators  of impairment loss  in i ts  Canada CGU and i ts  Capel la  block in Colombia and

recognized a loss  of $11,799,740.

As  at December 31, 2022, the Company reviewed i ts  CGUs for property and equipment and determined that there were

indicators  of impairment reversal  in i ts  Capel la  block in Colombia. The company prepared es�mates  of fa i r value

less  costs  of disposal  of i ts  Capel la  CGU and determined that recoverable amounts  exceeded their carrying value for

$10,409,615, which was offset by an impairment loss  of$1,388,961 determined in i ts  Canada CGU which was mainly

originated from a revis ion of reserves.

(Gain) loss on Derivative Liability

 Three months ended
December 31

Year ended
December 31

 2023 2022 2023 2022

(Gain) loss on Derivative Liability  (932,379) 1,005,740 (1,041,992) 5,974,674

During the three months  and year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recorded gains  in deriva�ve l iabi l i ty of
$932,379 and $1,041,992 (2022: loss  of $1,005,740 and $5,974,674), respec�vely, related to the valua�on of i ts
outstanding warrants  issued during i ts  AI M l is�ng and private placement completed in 2021. These warrants
provided the right to holders  to convert them into common shares  at a  fixed price set in a  currency different to the
Company's  func�onal  currency and, therefore, they are cons idered a l iabi l i ty and measured at fa i r value with
changes  recognized in the statements  of opera�ons and comprehensive (loss) income. These warrants  were seRled or
expired during 2023.

Income Taxes

 Three months ended
December 31

Years ended
December 31

 2023 2022 2023 2022

Current income tax expense 3,392,115 1,401,769 7,097,419 2,428,862

Deferred income tax expense (recovery) 973,731 5,662,248 (2,955,887) 5,662,248

Total income tax expense 4,365,846 7,064,017 4,141,532 8,091,110

During 2023, the Company recognized a total  income tax expense of $4,141,532 (2022: $8,091,110) which cons isted
on $7,097,419 of current income tax expense (2022: $2,428,862) and a recovery of $2,955,887 of deferred income tax
(2022: expense of $5,662,248). This  increase is  mainly caused by the con�nuous improvement of the Company's  net
taxable income, especial ly in Colombia.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Capital Management

The Company's  objec�ve is  to maintain a  capital  base sufficient to provide flexibi l i ty in the future development of the
business  and maintain investor, creditor and market confidence.  The Company manages  i ts  capital  s tructure and
makes adjustments  in response to changes  in economic condi�ons and the risk characteris�cs  of the underlying
assets . The Company cons iders  i ts  capital  s tructure to include share capital , debt and adjusted working capital . I n
order to maintain or adjust the capital  s tructure, from �me to �me the Company may issue common shares  or other
securi ties , sel l  assets  or adjust i ts  capital  spending to manage current and projected debt levels .

As  at December 31, 2023 the Company has  a  working capital  of $8,332,083. The Company has  continued improving i ts
working capital , us ing i ts  opera�onal  cash flows to seRle i ts  obl iga�ons and to con�nue growing i ts  opera�ons. The
stabi l i ty in energy commodity prices  has  a l lowed the Company's  capacity to generate sufficient financial  resources  to
sustain i ts  opera�ons and growth. As  at December 31, 2023 the Company's  net debt (net cash) was  calculated as
fol lows:
 

  December 31, 2023
  

Current assets   $ 21,629,198
Less:   
Accounts  payable and accrued l iabi l i ties   9,747,906
Income taxes  payable   3,108,504

Net debt (Net cash) (1)   $ (8,772,788)
(1)Non-IFRS measure

Working Capital

As at December 31, 2023 the Company's  adjusted working capital  was  calculated as  fol lows:

 

 

  December 31, 2023



  December 31, 2023
Current assets:   
   Cash   $ 12,135,376
   Restricted cash and deposits   611,753
   Trade and other receivables   3,536,936
   Taxes  receivable   4,655,399
   Other current assets   689,734
Less:   
  Accounts  payable and accrued l iabi l i ties   9,747,906
  Lease obl igation   103,674

   Income tax payable    3,108,504
Working capital(1)   $ 8,669,114

(1)Non-IFRS measure

Debt Capital

As at December 31, 2023 the Company does  not have any outstanding debt balance.

Letters of Credit
As at December 31, 2023, the Company had obl iga�ons under LeRers  of Credit ("LC's") outstanding total ing $2.7

mi l l ion to guarantee work commitments  on explora�on blocks  and other contractual  commitments . I n the event the

Company fa i ls  to secure the renewal  of the leRers  of credit underlying the ANH guarantees, or any of them, the ANH

could decide to cancel  the underlying explora�on and produc�on contract for a  par�cular block, as  appl icable. I n

this  instance, the Company could risk los ing i ts  en�re interest in the appl icable block, including al l  capital  expended

to date and could poss ibly a lso incur additional  abandonment and reclamation costs  i f appl ied by the ANH.

Current Outstanding Letters of Credit

Contract Beneficiary Issuer Type Amount
(US $) Renewal Date

SANTA ISABEL
ANH Carrao Energy Abandonment $563,894 April 14, 2025
ANH Carrao Energy Financial Capacity $1,672,162 June 30, 2024

CORE - 39 ANH Carrao Energy Compliance $100,000 June 30, 2024
OMBU ANH Carrao Energy Financial Capacity $436,300 October 14, 2024
Total  $2,772,356  

 

Share Capital

As at December 31, 2023, the Company had 285,864,348 common shares  and 20,531,668 stock options  outstanding.

RELATED PARTIES

The fol lowing table summarizes  the Company's  Director's  compensa�on paid during the year ended December 31,
2023:

 
Director

Salary or
Annual Fee

 
Bonus

Stock-Based
Compensation

 
Loan

 
Total

G. Jul l 379,500 490,000 110,231 225,000 1,204,731
M. Abbott 379,500 490,000 131,786 225,000 1,226,286
M. Charash 12,100 - (16,793) - (4,693)
G. Carnie 72,600 - 44,538 - 117,138
R. Sharma 72,600 - 46,081 - 118,681
A. Zaidi 72,600 - 34,946 - 107,546
Ian Langley 30,250 - 22,099 - 52,349
Total 1,019,150 980,000 372,888 450,000 2,822,038
During 2023, the Company granted loans  to some of i ts  execu�ves  and Directors  in the form of promissory notes ,

which are due on demand and bear interest at the average Bank of Canada I nterbank Rate (currently 5%). The current

aggregate balance receivable of these loans  is  $682,197, including interest of $9,650, and is  included as  other

account receivables .

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The fol lowing table provides  a  summary of the Company's  cash requirements  to meet i ts  financial  l iabi l i�es  and
contractual  obl igations  existing at December 31, 2023:

 Less than 1 year 1-3 years Thereafter Total

Exploration
and
production
contracts

 -  12,000,000  -  12,000,000

Exploration and Production Contracts

The Company has  entered into a  number of explora�on contracts  in Colombia which require the Company to fulfil l

work program commitments . I n aggregate, the Company has  outstanding commitments  of $12 mi l l ion. The Company

have made an appl ica�on to cancel  i ts  commitments  on the CO R-39, and during 2023, the ANH approved to cancel  the

Macaya and Los  P icachos blocks  contracts  by mutual  agreement, cancel l ing $5.8 mi l l ion in commitments  for the

Company.



Company.

SUMMARY OF THREE MONTHS RESULTS

 
 2023 2022
 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
Oil and natural
gas sales, net
of royalties

 
13,406,513

 
13,990,353

 
11,637,968

 
6,992,860

 
8,931,562

 
7,614,336

 
5,024,604

3,911,329
Net income

(loss)
(10,492,053) 7,153,120 (757,416) 2,989,735 2,968,117 2,041,955 768,318 (5,431,865)

Income (loss)
per share -

   basic
   diluted

 
(0.04)
(0.04)

 
0.03
0.02

 
(0.00)
(0.00)

 
0.01
0.01

 
0.01
0.01

 
0.02
0.00

 
0.00
0.00

 
(0.03)
(0.02)

Working capital
(deficit)

8,669,114 10,822,475 (2,363,388) 2,619,715 (1,316,665) 7,392,310 5,594,027 7,657,938

Total assets 62,275,023 62,755,250 56,305,530 53,719,944 53,190,248 46,979,259 42,670,153 39,914,240
Net capital

expenditures
10,471,447 5,471,561 6,870,258 4,271,693 2,106,463 4,836,860 2,777,611 725,665

Average daily
production
(boe/d)

2,666 2,518 2,169 1,635 1,736 1,503 980 1,144

 

The Company's  oi l  and natural  gas  sales  have increased 80% in 2023 when compared to 2022 due to increased

produc�on in i ts  exis�ng assets  and good commodity prices . The Company's  produc�on levels  in Colombia con�nue

growing. Trends in the Company's  net income are a lso impacted most s ignificantly by opera�ng expenses, financing

costs , income taxes, depletion, depreciation and impairment of oi l  and gas  properties , and other income.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At Apri l  28, 2024 the Company had the fol lowing securi ties  i ssued and outstanding:

 Number Exercise Price Expiry Date
Common shares 285,864,348 n/a              n/a
Stock options 750,000 CAD$ 1.15 October 22, 2028
Stock options 270,000 CAD$ 0.31 May 3, 2029
Stock options 1,200,000 CAD$ 0.05 March 20, 2030
Stock options 1,200,000 CAD$ 0.05 Apri l  13, 2030
Stock options 5,150,002 GBP 0.07625 June 13, 2024 and 2025
Stock options 1,533,335 CAD$0.28 Dec. 9, 2024 and 2025
Stock options 833,334 CAD$0.26 Mar. 7, 2025 and 2026
Stock options 4,951,110 GBP 0.1675 June 21, 2024, 2025 and 2026
Stock options 466,666 GBP 0.1925 July 23, 2024, 2025 and 2026
Stock options 1,000,000 CAD $0.33 Mar. 21, 2025, 2026 and 2027

OUTLOOK

The Company has  deployed the capital  ra ised at the �me of the Admiss ion to AI M on a successful  dri l l ing campaigns
at Rio Cravo and Carrizales  Norte on the Tapir Block. These successful  campaigns  have trans lated into produc�on
growth and in pos i�ve cashflows during 2023 and 2022, providing Arrow with the funds  required to con�nue with
its  capital  program for 2024.
 
During 2023, the Company dri l led eleven wel ls  (s ix at Rio Cravo, three at Carrizales  Norte and two in O so Pardo),
which have increased overal l  produc�on. To date, the Company has  a lready dri l led five wel ls  in i ts  Carrizales  Norte
field as  part of i ts  2024 capital  program, and expec�ng spudding of i ts  first horizontal  wel l  in the fol lowing days.
This  confirms Arrow's  commitment to increase produc�on and shareholder value. The Company is  able to support i ts
2024 capital  program with current cash on hand and cash flow from operations. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

A summary of the Company's  cri�cal  accoun�ng es�mates  is  contained in Note 3 Annual  F inancial  Statements . These

accoun�ng pol icies  are subject to es�mates  and key judgements  about future events , many of which are beyond

Arrow's  control . The fol lowing is  a  discuss ion of the accoun�ng es�mates  that are cri�cal  to the consol idated

financial  s tatements .

 

Crude oil and natural gas assets - reserves esImates - Arrow retained independent third-party petroleum engineers  to

evaluate i ts  crude oi l  and natural  gas  reserves, prepare an evalua�on report, and report to the Reserves  CommiRee of

the Board of Directors . The process  of es�ma�ng crude oi l  and natural  gas  reserves  is  subjec�ve and involves  a

s ignificant number of decis ions  and assump�ons in evalua�ng avai lable geological , geophys ical , engineering and

economic data. These es�mates  wi l l  change over �me as  addi�onal  data from ongoing development and produc�on

activi ties  becomes avai lable and as  economic conditions  affecting crude oi l  and natural  gas  prices  and costs  change.

Reserves  can be class ified as  proved, probable or poss ible with decreas ing levels  of l ikel ihood that the reserves  wi l l

be ul�mately produced. Reserve es�mates  are a  key input to the Company's  deple�on calcula�ons and impairment

tests . P roperty, plant and equipment within each area are depleted us ing the unit-of-produc�on method based on

proved and probable reserves  us ing es�mated future prices  and costs . I n addi�on, the costs  subject to deple�on

include an es�mate of future costs  to be incurred in developing proved and probable reserves. A revis ion in reserve

estimates  or future development costs  could result in the recognition of higher depletion charged to net income.

 



 

Under the I F RS, the carrying amounts  of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each repor�ng date to

determine whether there is  any indica�on of impairment. I f any such indica�on exists , the es�mated recoverable

amount is  calculated. For the purpose of impairment tes�ng, assets  are grouped together into the smal lest group of

assets  that generates  cash inflows from con�nuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other

assets  or groups of assets  (the "cash-genera�ng unit" or "CGU"). The recoverable amount of an asset or a  CGU is  the

greater of i ts  value in use and i ts  fa i r value less  costs  to sel l . I n assess ing value in use, the es�mated future cash

flows are discounted to their present value us ing a  pre-tax discount rate that reflects  current market assessments  of

the �me value of money and the risks  specific to the asset. Value in use is  general ly computed by reference to the

present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from produc�on of proven and probable reserves.

Explora�on and evalua�on ("E&E") assets  wi l l  be a l located to the related CGU's  to assess  for impairment, both at the

�me of any triggering facts  and ci rcumstances  as  wel l  as  upon their eventual  reclass ifica�on to producing assets  (oi l

and natural  gas  interests  in property, plant and equipment). An impairment loss  i s  recognized in income i f the

carrying amount of an asset or i ts  CGU exceeds i ts  es�mated recoverable amount. Reserve, revenue, royalty and

opera�ng cost es�mates  and the �ming of future cash flows are a l l  cri�cal  components  of the impairment test.

Revis ions  of these es�mates  could result in a  write-down of the carrying amount of crude oi l  and natural  gas

properties .

 

Decommissioning obligations - The Company recognizes  the es�mated fa ir value of the decommiss ion l iabi l i ty in the

period in which i t i s  incurred and records  a  corresponding increase in the carrying value of the related asset. The

future asset re�rement obl iga�on is  an es�mate based on the Company's  ownership interest in wel ls  and faci l i�es

and reflects  es�mated costs  to complete the abandonment and reclama�on as  wel l  as  the es�mated �ming of the

costs  to be incurred in future periods. Estimates  of the costs  associated with abandonment and reclamation activi ties

require judgement concerning the method, �ming and extent of future re�rement ac�vi�es. The capital ized amount is

depleted on a unit-of-produc�on method over the l i fe of the proved and probable reserves. The l iabi l i ty amount is

increased each repor�ng period due to the passage of �me and this  accre�on amount is  charged to earnings  in the

period, which is  included as  a  financing expense. Actual  costs  incurred on seRlement of the decommiss ioning

l iabi l i ty are charged against the l iabi l i ty. Judgements  affec�ng current and annual  expense are subject to future

revis ions  based on changes  in technology, abandonment �ming, costs , discount rates  and the regulatory

environment.

 

Income taxes - Arrow fol lows the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences  between the carrying

amounts  of assets  and l iabi l i�es  for financial  repor�ng purposes  and the amounts  used for taxa�on purposes.

Current tax is  the expect tax payable on the taxable income for the year, us ing tax rates  enacted or substan�al ly

enacted at the repor�ng period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect to previous  periods. Tax interpreta�ons

and legis la�on in which the Company operates  are subject to change. As  such, income taxes  are subject to

measurement uncertainty and interpreta�ons can impact net income through current tax aris ing from the changes  in

the deferred income tax asset and l iabi l i ties .

 

Provisions and conIngencies - The Company recognizes  provis ions  based on an assessment of i ts  obl iga�ons and

avai lable informa�on. Any maRers  not included as  provis ions  are uncertain in nature and cannot be reasonably

es�mated. The Company makes  assump�ons to determine whether obl iga�ons exist and to es�mate the amount of

obl iga�ons that we bel ieve exist. I n es�ma�ng the final  outcome of l i�ga�on, assump�ons are made about factors

including experience with s imi lar maRers , past history, precedents , relevant financial , scien�fic, and other evidence

and facts  specific to the maRer. This  determines  whether a  provis ion or disclosure in the financial  s tatements  is

needed.

 

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the Company's  materia l  accoun�ng pol icies  i s  included in note 3 of the Annual  F inancial  Statements .

These accoun�ng pol icies  are cons istent with those of the previous  financial  year as  described in Note 3 of the

Annual  Financial  Statements .

 

DERIVATIVE COMMODITY CONTRACTS

The Company holds  various  forms of financial  instruments . The nature of these instruments  and the Company's

opera�ons expose the Company to commodity price, credit and foreign exchange risks . The Company manages  i ts

exposure to these risks  by opera�ng in a  manner that minimizes  i ts  exposure to the extent prac�cal . During 2023, the

Company did not have any financial  derivative contract in order to manage commodity price risks . 

 

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES



RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company is  subject to financial , bus iness  and other risks , many of which are beyond i ts  control  and which could

have a materia l  adverse effect on the bus iness  and opera�ons of the Company. A summary of certain risk factors

relating to our bus iness  are disclosed below.

Unstable Oil and Gas Industry

Recent market events  and condi�ons, constant changes  oi l  and natural  gas  supply, ac�ons taken by the O rganiza�on

of Petroleum Expor�ng Countries  (O P EC), s lowing growth in China and other emerging economies, market vola�l i ty

and disrup�ons in As ia, and sovereign debt levels  in various  countries , have caused s ignificant weakness  and

vola�l i ty in commodity prices . These events  and condi�ons have caused a s ignificant vola�l i ty in the valua�on of oi l

and gas  companies  and a variable confidence in the oi l  and gas  industry. Lower commodity prices  may also affect the

volume and value of the Company's  reserves  especial ly as  certain reserves  become uneconomic. I n addi�on, in a  low

commodity prices  environment might affect the Company's  cash flow. As  a  result, the Company may not be able to

replace i ts  produc�on with addi�onal  reserves  and both the Company's  produc�on and reserves  could be reduced on

a year over year bas is . Given the current market conditions, the Company may have di fficulty ra is ing additional  funds

or i f i t i s  able to do so, i t may be on unfavourable and highly di lutive terms.

Prices, Markets and Marketing of Crude Oil and Natural Gas

O il  and natural  gas  are commodi�es  whose prices  are determined based on world demand, supply and other factors ,

a l l  of which are beyond the control  of Arrow. World prices  for oi l  and natural  gas  have fluctuated widely in recent

years . Any materia l  decl ine in prices  could result in a  reduc�on of net produc�on revenue. Certain wel ls  or other

projects  may become uneconomic as  a  result of a  decl ine in world oi l  prices  and natural  gas  prices , leading to a

reduc�on in the volume of Arrow's  oi l  and gas  reserves. Arrow might a lso elect not to produce from certain wel ls  at

lower prices . Al l  of these factors  could result in a  materia l  decrease in Arrow's  future net production revenue, caus ing

a reduction in i ts  oi l  and gas  acquis i tion and development activi ties .

 

I n addi�on to establ ishing markets  for i ts  oi l  and natural  gas , Arrow must a lso successful ly market i ts  oi l  and

natural  gas  to prospec�ve buyers . The marketabi l i ty and price of oi l  and natural  gas  which may be acquired or

discovered by Arrow wi l l  be affected by numerous factors  beyond i ts  control . Arrow wi l l  be affected by the differen�al

between the price paid by refiners  for l ight qual i ty oi l  and the grades  of oi l  produced by Arrow. The abi l i ty of Arrow to

market i ts  natural  gas  may depend upon i ts  abi l i ty to acquire space on pipel ines  which del iver natural  gas  to

commercial  markets . Arrow wi l l  a lso l ikely be affected by del iverabi l i ty uncertain�es  related to the proximity of i ts

reserves  to pipel ines  and process ing faci l i�es  and related to opera�onal  problems with such pipel ines  and faci l i�es

and extens ive government regula�on rela�ng to price, taxes, royal�es, land tenure, a l lowable produc�on, the export

of oi l  and natural  gas  and many other aspects  of the oi l  and natural  gas  bus iness .

Substantial Capital Requirements; Liquidity

Arrow's  cash flow from i ts  produc�on and sales  of petroleum and natural  gas  may not, at a l l  �mes be sufficient to

fund i ts  ongoing ac�vi�es. From �me to �me, Arrow may require addi�onal  financing in order to carry out i ts  oi l  and

gas  acquis i�on, explora�on and development ac�vi�es. Fai lure to obtain such financing on a �mely bas is  could

cause Arrow to forfei t i ts  interest in certain proper�es, miss  certain acquis i�on opportuni�es  and reduce or

terminate i ts  opera�ons. I f Arrow's  revenues from i ts  produc�on of petroleum and natural  gas  decrease as  a  result of

lower oi l  and natural  gas  prices  or otherwise, i t may affect Arrow's  abi l i ty to expend the necessary capital  to replace

its  reserves  or to maintain i ts  produc�on. I f Arrow's  funds  from opera�ons are not sufficient to sa�sfy i ts  capital

expenditure requirements , there can be no assurance that addi�onal  financing wi l l  be avai lable to meet these

requirements  or avai lable on terms acceptable to Arrow.

 

Arrow's  lenders  wi l l  be provided with securi ty over substan�al ly a l l  of the assets  of Arrow. I f Arrow becomes unable

to pay i ts  debt service charges  or otherwise commits  an event of default, such as  bankruptcy, these lenders  may

foreclose on or sel l  Arrow's  proper�es. The proceeds of any such sale would be appl ied to sa�sfy amounts  owed to

Arrow's  lenders  and other creditors  and only the remainder, i f any, would be avai lable to Arrow shareholders . Arrow

monitors  and updates  i ts  cash projec�on models  on a regular bas is  which ass ists  in the �ming decis ion of capital

expenditures . Farm-outs  of projects  may be arranged i f capital  constraints  are an issue or i f the risk profile dictates

that the Company wishes  to hold a  lesser working interest pos i�on. Equity, i f avai lable and i f on reasonable terms,

may be uti l i zed to help fund Arrow's  capital  program.

Access to Capital

Access  to capital  has  become l imited during these times of economic uncertainty. To the extent the external  sources  of

capital  become l imited or unavai lable. Arrow's  abi l i ty to make the necessary capital  investments  to maintain or

expand oi l  and gas  reserves  may be impaired.



 

 

 

Risks of Foreign Operations Generally

Most of Arrow's  oi l  and gas  proper�es  and opera�ons are located in a  foreign jurisdic�on. As  such, Arrow's

opera�ons may be adversely affected by changes  in foreign government pol icies  and legis la�on or socia l  instabi l i ty

and other factors  which are not within the control  of Arrow, including, but not l imited to, na�onal iza�on,

expropria�on of property without fa i r compensa�on, renego�a�on or nul l ifica�on of exis�ng concess ions  and

contracts , the imposi�on of specific dri l l ing obl iga�ons and the development and abandonment of fields , changes  in

energy pol icies  or the personnel  administering them, changes  in oi l  and natural  gas  pricing pol icies , the ac�ons of

na�onal  labour unions, currency fluctua�ons and devalua�ons, exchange controls , economic sanc�ons and royalty

and tax increases  and other risks  aris ing out of foreign governmental  sovereignty over the areas  in which Arrow's

opera�ons are conducted, as  wel l  as  risks  of loss  due to civi l  s tri fe, acts  of war, terrorism, guerri l la  ac�vi�es  and

insurrec�ons. Arrow's  opera�ons may also be adversely affected by laws and pol icies  of Colombia and Canada

affec�ng foreign trade, taxa�on and investment. I f Arrow's  opera�ons are disrupted and/or the economic integri ty of

i ts  projects  i s  threatened for unexpected reasons, i ts  bus iness  may be harmed. P rolonged problems may threaten the

commercial  viabi l i ty of i ts  opera�ons. I n addi�on, there can be no assurance that contracts , l icenses, l icense

appl ica�ons or other legal  arrangements  wi l l  not be adversely affected by changes  in governments  in foreign

jurisdic�ons, the ac�ons of government authori�es  or others , or the effec�veness  and enforcement of such

arrangements . I n the event of a  dispute aris ing in connec�on with Arrow's  opera�ons in Colombia, Arrow may be

subject to the exclus ive jurisdic�on of foreign courts  or may not be successful  in subjec�ng foreign persons  to the

jurisdic�ons of the courts  of Canada or enforcing Canadian judgments  in such other jurisdic�ons. Arrow may also be

hindered or prevented from enforcing i ts  rights  with respect to a  governmental  instrumental i ty because of the

doctrine of sovereign immunity. Accordingly, Arrow's  explora�on, development and produc�on ac�vi�es  in Colombia

could be substan�al ly affected by factors  beyond the Company's  control , any of which could have a materia l  adverse

effect on Arrow. Acquiring interests  and conduc�ng explora�on and development opera�ons in foreign jurisdic�ons

oMen require compl iance with numerous and extens ive procedures  and formal i�es. These procedures  and formal i�es

may result in unexpected or lengthy delays  in commencing important bus iness  ac�vi�es. I n some cases, fa i lure to

fol low such formal i�es  or obtain relevant evidence may cal l  into ques�on the val idi ty of the en�ty or the ac�ons

taken. Management is  unable to predict the effect of addi�onal  corporate and regulatory formal i�es  which may be

adopted in the future including whether any such laws or regula�ons would materia l ly increase Arrow's  cost of doing

business  or affect i ts  opera�ons in any area. Arrow bel ieves  that management's  experience opera�ng both in

Colombia and in other interna�onal  jurisdic�ons helps  reduce these risks . I n Colombia, the government has  a  long

history of democracy and an establ ished legal  framework that, in Arrow's  opinion, minimizes  pol i tical  ri sks .  

Social risks

The Company's  ac�vi�es  are subject to socia l  ri sks , including protests  or blockades  by groups located near some of

the Company's  opera�ons. Despite the fact that the Company is  commiRed to opera�ng in a  socia l ly responsible

manner, the Company may face opposi�on from local  communi�es  and non-governmental  organiza�ons with respect

to i ts  current and future projects , which could adversely affect the Company's  bus iness , results  of opera�ons and

financial  condi�on. No certainty can be given that the Company wi l l  be able to reach an agreement with the different

communi�es  or specia l  interest groups, such as  environmental ists  and ethnic communi�es. Reaching such an

agreement may also incur unan�cipated costs . The Company could a lso be exposed to s imi lar delays  due to

opposition from local  communities  in other countries  where the Company carries  out i ts  activi ties .

Russia-Ukraine Conflict

O n February 24, 2022, Russ ian mi l i tary forces  launched a ful l -scale mi l i tary invas ion of Ukraine. I n response,

Ukrainian mi l i tary personal  and civi l ians  are ac�vely res is�ng the invas ion. Many countries  throughout the world

have provided aid to the Ukraine in the form of financial  a id and in some cases  mi l i tary equipment and weapons to

ass ist in their res istance to the Russ ian invas ion. The North Atlan�c Treaty O rganiza�on ("NATO ") has  a lso mobi l ized

forces  to NATO  member countries  that are close to the conflict as  deterrence to further Russ ian aggress ion in the

region. The outcome of the conflict i s  uncertain and is  l ikely to have wide ranging consequences  on the peace and

stabi l i ty of the region and the world economy. Certain countries  including Canada and the United States , have

imposed strict financial  and trade sanc�ons against Russ ia  and such sanc�ons may have far reaching effects  on the

global  economy. I n addi�on, the German government paused the cer�fica�on process  for the 1,200 km Nord Stream 2

natural  gas  pipel ine that was  bui l t to carry natural  gas  from Russ ia  to Germany. As  Russ ia  is  a  major exporter of oi l

and natural  gas , the disrup�on of suppl ies  of oi l  and natural  gas  from Russ ia  could cause a s ignificant worldwide

supply shortage of oi l  and natural  gas  and s ignificantly impact pricing of oi l  and gas  worldwide. A lack of supply and



supply shortage of oi l  and natural  gas  and s ignificantly impact pricing of oi l  and gas  worldwide. A lack of supply and

high prices  of oi l  and natural  gas  could have a s ignificant adverse impact on the world economy. The long-term

impacts  of the confl ict and the sanctions  imposed on Russ ia  remain uncertain.

Alternatives to/Changing Demand for Petroleum Products

Fuel  conserva�on measures, a l terna�ve fuel  requirements , increas ing consumer demand for a l terna�ves  to oi l  and

natural  gas , and technological  advances  in fuel  economy and energy genera�on devices  wi l l  reduce the demand for

crude oi l , natural  gas  and other l iquid hydrocarbons. The Company cannot predict the impact of changing demand for

oi l  and natural  gas  products  and any major changes  would have a materia l  adverse effect on the Company's

bus iness , financial  condition, results  of operations  and cash flow.

Exploration, Development and Production Risks

Oil  and natural  gas  exploration involves  a  high degree of risk, for which even a combination of experience, knowledge

and careful  evalua�on may not be able to overcome. There is  no assurance that expenditures  made on future

explora�on by Arrow wi l l  result in new discoveries  of oi l  or natural  gas  in commercial  quan��es. I t i s  difficult to

project the costs  of implemen�ng an exploratory dri l l ing program due to the inherent uncertain�es  of dri l l ing in

unknown forma�ons, the costs  associated with encountering various  dri l l ing condi�ons such as  over-pressured

zones, tools  lost in the hole and changes  in dri l l ing plans  and loca�ons as  a  result of prior exploratory wel ls  or

additional  seismic data and interpretations  thereof.

 

The long-term commercial  success  of Arrow wi l l  depend on i ts  abi l i ty to find, acquire, develop and commercial ly

produce oi l  and natural  gas  reserves. No assurance can be given that Arrow wi l l  be able to locate sa�sfactory

properties  for acquis i tion or participation. Moreover, i f such acquis i tions  or participations  are identi fied, Arrow may

determine that current markets , terms of acquis i�on and par�cipa�on or pricing condi�ons make such acquis i�ons

or participations  uneconomic.

 

Future oi l  and gas  explora�on may involve unprofitable efforts , not only from dry wel ls , but from wel ls  that are

produc�ve but do not produce sufficient net revenues to return a profit aMer dri l l ing, opera�ng and other costs .

Comple�on of a  wel l  does  not assure a  profit on the investment or recovery of dri l l ing, comple�on and opera�ng

costs . I n addi�on, dri l l ing hazards  or environmental  damage could greatly increase the cost of opera�ons, and

various  field opera�ng condi�ons may adversely affect the produc�on from successful  wel ls . These condi�ons

include delays  in obtaining governmental  approvals  or consents , shut-ins  of connected wel ls  resul�ng from extreme

weather condi�ons, insufficient storage or transporta�on capacity or other geological  and mechanical  condi�ons.

W hi le di l igent wel l  supervis ion and effec�ve maintenance opera�ons can contribute to maximizing produc�on rates

over �me, produc�on delays  and natural  reservoir performance decl ines  cannot be el iminated and can be expected

to adversely affect revenue and cash flow levels  to varying degrees.

 

I n addi�on, oi l  and gas  opera�ons are subject to the risks  of explora�on, development and produc�on of oi l  and

natural  gas  proper�es, including encountering unexpected forma�ons or pressures , premature decl ines  of reservoirs ,

blow-outs , sour gas  releases, fires  and spi l l s . Losses  resul�ng from the occurrence of any of these risks  could have a

materia l ly adverse effect on future results  of opera�ons, l iquidity and financial  condi�on. Arrow aRempts  to

minimize explora�on, development and produc�on risks  by u�l izing a  technical  team with extens ive experience to

assure the highest probabi l i ty of success  in i ts  dri l l ing efforts . The col labora�on of a  team of seasoned veterans  in

the oi l  and gas  bus iness , each with a  unique exper�se in the various  upstream to downstream technical  discipl ines

of prospect genera�on to opera�ons, provides  the best assurance of competency, risk management and dri l l ing

success . A ful l  cycle economic model  i s  u�l ized to evaluate a l l  hydrocarbon prospects . Detai led geological  and

geophys ical  techniques  are regularly employed including 3D seismic, petrography, sedimentology, petrophys ical  log

analys is  and regional  geological  evaluation.

 

 

Governmental Regulation

The oil and gas business is subject to regulation and intervention by governments in such matters as the
awarding of exploration and production interests, the imposition of specific drilling obligations, environmental
protection controls, control over the development and abandonment of fields (including restrictions on
production) and possible expropriation or cancellation of contract rights, as well as with respect to prices, taxes,
export quotas, royalties and the exportation of oil and natural gas. Such regulations may be changed from time
to time in response to economic or political conditions. The implementation of new regulations or the
modification of existing regulations affecting the oil and gas industry could reduce demand for oil and natural
gas, increase Arrow's costs and have a material adverse effect on Arrow.



gas, increase Arrow's costs and have a material adverse effect on Arrow.

Global Pandemic

Arrow's  bus iness , financial  condi�on and results  of opera�ons could be materia l ly and adversely affected by the

outbreak of epidemics , pandemics  and other publ ic health crises  in geographic areas  in which we have opera�ons,

suppl iers , customers  or employees. The past COVI D-19 pandemic, and ac�ons that may be taken by governmental

authori�es  in response thereto, has  resulted, and may con�nue to result in, among other things: increased vola�l i ty

in financial  markets  and foreign currency exchange rates; disrup�ons to global  supply chains; labour shortages;

reduc�ons in trade volumes; temporary opera�onal  restric�ons and restric�ons on gatherings  greater than a certain

number of individuals , shelter-in- place declara�ons and quaran�ne orders , bus iness  closures  and travel  bans; an

overal l  s lowdown in the global  economy; pol i�cal  and economic instabi l i ty; and civi l  unrest. A prolonged period of

affected demand for, and prices  of, these commodi�es, and any appl icable storage constraints , could a lso result in

us  voluntari ly curtai l ing or shuYng in produc�on and a decrease in our refined product volumes and refinery

u�l iza�on rates , which could adversely impact our bus iness , financial  condi�on and results  of opera�ons. Arrow is

also subject to risks  rela�ng to the health and safety of our people, as  wel l  as  the poten�al  for a  s lowdown or

temporary suspension of our opera�ons in loca�ons impacted by an outbreak, increased labour and fuel  costs , and

regulatory changes. Such a suspension in opera�ons could a lso be mandated by governmental  authori�es  in

response to a  pandemic. This  could nega�vely impact Arrow's  produc�on volumes and revenues for a  sustained

period of time, which would adversely impact our bus iness , financial  condition and results  of operations.

Credit Exposure

Recent economic condi�ons have increased the risk that certain counterpar�es  for the Company's  oi l  and gas  sales

and our joint venture partners  may fa i l  to pay. Arrow mi�gates  these increased risks  through divers ifica�on and a

review process  of the credit worthiness  of our counterpar�es. Arrow's  pol icy to mi�gate credit risk associated with

product sales  is  to maintain marke�ng rela�onships  with large, establ ished and reputable purchasers  that are

considered creditworthy. Arrow has  not experienced any col lec�on issues  with i ts  petroleum and natural  gas

marketers . Joint venture receivables  are typical ly col lected within two to three months  of the joint venture bi l l  being

issued to the partner. Arrow aRempts  to mi�gate the risk from joint venture receivables  by obtaining partner

approval  of s ignificant capital  and opera�ng expenditures  prior to expenditure and in certain ci rcumstances  may

require cash deposits  in advance of incurring financial  obl igations  on behalf of joint venture partners .

Health, Safety and Environment

Al l  phases  of the oi l  and natural  gas  bus iness  present environmental  risks  and hazards  and are subject to

environmental  regula�on pursuant to a  variety of federal , provincia l/state and local  laws and regula�ons.

Environmental  legis la�on provides  for, among other things , restric�ons and prohibi�ons on spi l l s , releases  or

emiss ions  of various  substances  produced in associa�on with oi l  and natural  gas  opera�ons. The legis la�on also

requires  that wel ls  and faci l i ty s i tes  be operated, maintained, abandoned and recla imed to the sa�sfac�on of

appl icable regulatory authori�es. Compl iance with such legis la�on can require s ignificant expenditures  and a

breach of appl icable environmental  legis la�on may result in the imposi�on of fines  and penal�es, some of which

may be materia l . Environmental  legis la�on is  evolving in a  manner expected to result in stricter standards  and

enforcement, larger fines  and l iabi l i ty and poten�al ly increased capital  expenditures  and opera�ng costs . The

discharge of oi l , natural  gas  or other pol lutants  into the air, soi l  or water may give rise to l iabi l i�es  to governments

and third parties  and may require the Company to incur costs  to remedy such discharge.

 

There are poten�al  risks  to the environment inherent in the bus iness  ac�vi�es  of the Company. Arrow has  developed

and implemented pol icies  and procedures  to mi�gate health, safety and environment (H S&E) risks . Arrow mi�gates

H S&E risks  by maintaining i ts  wel ls  and complying with a l l  regula�ons. Regular field inspec�ons are a lso carried out

to ensure that a l l  field personnel  and third party contractors  comply with a l l  company and regulatory guidel ines. An

ac�on plan has  been developed to ensure inac�ve wel ls  are suspended properly and abandoned in a  �mely fashion.

The above noted pol icies  and procedures  are des igned to protect and maintain the environment and to ensure that the

employees, contractors , subcontractors  and the publ ic at large are kept safe at a l l  times.

Foreign Exchange and Currency Risks

The Company is  exposed to foreign exchange and currency risk as  a  result of fluctua�ons in exchange rates  between

Colombian peso and the Canadian dol lar. Most of the Corpora�on's  revenues and funds from financing ac�vi�es  are

expected to be received in reference to US dol lar denominated prices  whi le a  por�on of i ts  opera�ng, capital , and

general  and administrative costs  are denominated in the Colombian peso and the Canadian dol lar.

Competition

Arrow ac�vely competes  for reserve acquis i�ons, explora�on leases, l icenses  and concess ions  and ski l led industry

personnel  with a  substan�al  number of other oi l  and gas  companies , many of which have s ignificantly greater



financial  and personnel  resources  than Arrow. Arrow's  compe�tors  include major integrated oi l  and natural  gas

companies  and numerous other independent oi l  and natural  gas  companies  and individual  producers  and operators .

 

Certain of Arrow's  customers  and poten�al  customers  are themselves  exploring for oi l  and natural  gas , and the

results  of such explora�on efforts  could affect Arrow's  abi l i ty to sel l  or supply oi l  or gas  to these customers  in the

future. Arrow's  abi l i ty to successful ly bid on and acquire addi�onal  property rights , to discover reserves, to

par�cipate in dri l l ing opportuni�es  and to iden�fy and enter into commercial  arrangements  with customers  wi l l  be

dependent upon developing and maintaining close working rela�onships  with i ts  future industry partners  and joint

operators  and i ts  abi l i ty to select and evaluate suitable proper�es  and to consummate transac�ons in a  highly

competitive environment.

Climate Change 

There is  growing interna�onal  concern regarding cl imate change and there has  been a s ignificant increase in focus

on the �ming and pace of the trans i�on to a  lower-carbon economy. Governments , financial  ins�tu�ons, insurance

companies , environmental  and governance organiza�ons, ins�tu�onal  investors , socia l  and environmental  ac�vists ,

and individuals , are increas ingly seeking to implement, among other things , regulatory and pol icy changes, changes

in investment paRerns, and modifica�ons in energy consump�on habits  and trends  which, individual ly and

col lectively are intended to or have the effect of accelerating the reduction in the global  consumption of carbon based

energy, the convers ion of energy usage to less  carbon-intens ive forms and the general  migration of energy usage away

from carbon-based forms of energy. Cl imate change and i ts  associated impacts  may increase the Company's  exposure

to, and magnitude of, each of the risks  iden�fied in this  M D&A. O veral l , the Company is  not able to es�mate at this

�me the degree to which cl imate change related regulatory, cl ima�c condi�ons, and cl imate-related trans i�on risks

could impact the Company's  financial  and opera�ng results . The Company's  bus iness , financial  condi�on, results  of

opera�ons, cash flows, reputa�on, access  to capital , access  to insurance, cost of borrowing, access  to l iquidity and

abi l i ty to fund bus iness  plans  may, in par�cular, without l imita�on, be adversely impacted as  a  result of cl imate

change and i ts  associated impacts .

Social License to Operate

Heightened publ ic monitoring and regula�on of hydrocarbon resource producers , refiners , distributors  and

commercial/retai l  sel lers , especial ly where their ac�vi�es  carry the poten�al  for having nega�ve impacts  on

communi�es  and the environment, involves  varying degrees  of risk to the Company's  reputa�on, rela�ons with

landowners  and regulators , and in extreme cases  even the abi l i ty to operate. Arrow maintains  an ac�ve website that

compl ies  with Exchange requirements  for �mely disclosure and together with i ts  press  releases  and other S EDAR

fi l ings , i s  the primary means of communicating to the general  publ ic.

 

 

W hi le media aRen�on and publ ic percep�on remains  largely beyond the control  of Arrow's  execu�ve, employees,

contractors  and directors , the Company makes  every effort in i ts  corporate and field opera�ons to engage al l

s takeholders  in a  respectful  and transparent manner.

 

INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

 
The C EO  and C FO, a long with par�cipa�on from other members  of management, are responsible for establ ishing and

maintaining adequate I nternal  Control  over F inancial  Repor�ng ("I C F R") to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the rel iabi l i ty of financial  s tatements  prepared in accordance with I F RS. The Company's  C EO  and C FO, with support of

management have assessed the des ign and opera�ng effec�veness  of the Corpora�on's  I C F R as  at December 31, 2023

based on cri teria  described in "I nternal  Control  - I ntegrated Framework" issued in 2013 by the CommiRee of

Sponsoring O rganiza�on of the Treadway Commiss ion. Based on this  assessment, i t was  concluded that the des ign

and opera�on of the Corpora�on's  I C F R are effec�ve as  at December 31, 2023. During the three months  ended

December 31, 2023, there has  been no change in the Corpora�on's  I C F R that has  materia l ly affected, or i s  reasonably

l ikely to materia l ly affect, the Corporation's  ICFR.

 

 

This information is provided by RNS, the news service of the London Stock Exchange. RNS is approved by the Financial Conduct Authority to act as a
Primary Information Provider in the United Kingdom. Terms and conditions relating to the use and distribution of this information may apply. For further



information, please contact rns@lseg.com or visit www.rns.com.

RNS may use your IP address to confirm compliance with the terms and conditions, to analyse how you engage with the information contained in this
communication, and to share such analysis on an anonymised basis with others as part of our commercial services. For further information about how
RNS and the London Stock Exchange use the personal data you provide us, please see our Privacy Policy.
 
END
 
 
FR QKCBKPBKKNQB

mailto:rns@lseg.com
http://www.rns.com/
https://www.lseg.com/privacy-and-cookie-policy

	ASSETS
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	Share capital
	13
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